

**UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION
ATOMIC SAFETY AND LICENSING BOARD**

**Before Administrative Judges:
Thomas S. Moore, Chairman
Alex S. Karlin
Alan S. Rosenthal**

In the Matter of	Docket No. PAPO-00
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY	ASLBP No. 04-829-01 PAPO
(High Level Waste Repository: Pre-Application Matters)	April 7, 2008

**THE STATE OF NEVADA AND U.S. DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY'S
JOINT MOTION TO CORRECT THE TRANSCRIPT RECORD
OF THE FEBRUARY 28, 2008 PAPO BOARD HEARING**

The State of Nevada ("Nevada") and U.S. Department of Energy ("DOE") jointly move the PAPO Board requesting that, in accordance with 10 C.F.R. 2.327(d), the Board (i) accept the accompanying redline transcript of the Board's February 28, 2008 hearing in lieu of an errata sheet as called for in the Board's March 26, 2008 Order; and (ii) require the Secretary to adopt and implement necessary corrections to ensure the accuracy of the official transcript of the Board's February 28, 2008 hearing in conformity with the accompanying redline. Nevada and DOE state in support of this motion:

1. On February 28, 2008, the PAPO Board conducted a hearing in the NRC's facility in Rockville, Maryland, a transcript of which was made publicly available on March 4, 2008. On March 17, 2008, after having reviewed the transcript and having conferred in good faith pursuant to 10 C.F.R. 2.323(b), Nevada and DOE filed a "Joint Request for Correction of Errors in the Transcript of the February 28, 2008 PAPO Board Hearing" ("Joint Request").

2. Attached to the Joint Request was an errata sheet for the March 4, 2008 transcript, which errata were based on Nevada and DOE counsels' review of the transcript and their recollection of what was said at the hearing.

3. On March 26, 2008, the Board entered an Order regarding the Joint Request. The Order neither granted nor denied the Joint Request, but directed Nevada and DOE to prepare an errata list based on review of the audiovisual recording of the February 28, 2008 hearing, with a view toward correcting the transcript to reflect "the words that were actually spoken at oral argument." The Board sent by overnight mail a CD of the oral argument to counsel for both Nevada and DOE for that review.

4. Following issuance of the March 26, 2008 Order, counsel for Nevada and DOE conferred regarding preparation of an errata list. It was jointly agreed that counsel for Nevada would utilize an on-staff professional assistant who has court reporting training to review the entire audiovisual recording of the February 28, 2008 hearing, along with the March 4, 2008 transcript, and to note transcription errors. That professional prepared the attached redline as a consequence of that review. Each error is identified on the redline version at the page and line number at which it is found, where the proposed correction for each error is also identified, to conform the transcript to the actual statements made at the February 28, 2008 hearing.

5. Counsel for Nevada and DOE reviewed the redline transcript and realized that the number of transcription errors, sometimes exceeding ten per page, made preparation of an errata sheet cumbersome both to create and use.

6. Accordingly, counsel for Nevada and DOE conferred and agreed that the redline transcript (attached as Exhibit A) accurately serves as a record of the errata and accordingly provides the basis for the Board's consideration and adoption of a corrected transcript.

7. Counsel for Nevada and DOE have additionally met and conferred in accordance with the requirements of 10 C.F.R. 3.23(b) and agree that the errata in the accompanying redlined version of the February 28 transcript correctly identify the page and line number of each identified error and offers the parties' proposed agreed correction for each error. The parties believe that the redlined version submitted with this motion accurately meets the letter and spirit of the PAPO Board's March 17, 2008 Order in that it submits errata and their proposed corrections which, based upon the CD audio/video of the hearing, contain "the words that were actually spoken at oral argument."

For these reasons, Nevada and DOE respectfully request that the Board grant this Joint Motion to Correct the Transcript Record of the February 28, 2008 PAPO Board Hearing, and that the Board approve the corrections requested by Nevada and DOE, as reflected in the redlined transcript they are submitting, and order that the Secretary adopt and implement these changes in accordance with the provisions of 10 C.F.R. 2.327(d). In the event that this Joint Motion is not granted, the Movants jointly request that, alternatively, they be granted an extension of time from the Board's current April 7, 2008 deadline for submission of errata to a subsequent reasonable date for compliance, and that the Board provide further direction should an alternative submittal be required.

Respectfully submitted,

(signed electronically)

Charles J. Fitzpatrick

Joseph R. Egan

Martin G. Malsch

EGAN, FITZPATRICK & MALSCH, PLLC

12500 San Pedro Avenue, Suite 555

San Antonio, TX 78216

Telephone: 210.496.5001

Facsimile: 210.496.5011

Email: cfitzpatrick@nuclearlawyer.com

Attorneys for the State of Nevada

(signed electronically)
Michael R. Shebelskie
HUNTON & WILLIAMS, LLP
Riverfront Plaza, East Tower
951 East Byrd Street
Richmond, Virginia 23219-4074
Telephone: 804.788.8200
Facsimile: 804.788.8218
Email: mshebelskie@hunton.com
Attorneys for the U.S. Department of Energy

April 7, 2008

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION

In the Matter of)
)
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY) Docket No. PAPO-00
)
(High-Level Waste Repository:)
Pre-Application Matters))

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that the foregoing State of Nevada and U.S. Department of Energy's Joint Motion to Correct the Transcript Record of the February 28, 2008 PAPO Board Hearing has been served upon the following persons either by Electronic Information Exchange or electronic mail (denoted by an asterisk (*)).

U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission
Atomic Safety and Licensing Board Panel
Mail Stop - T-3 F23
Washington, DC 20555-0001
Thomas S. Moore, Chair
Administrative Judge
Email: PAPO@nrc.gov
Alex S. Karlin
Administrative Judge
Email: PAPO@nrc.gov
Alan S. Rosenthal
Administrative Judge
Email: PAPO@nrc.gov &
rsnthl@comcast.net
G. Paul Bollwerk, III
Administrative Judge
Email: PAPO@nrc.gov
Anthony C. Eitrem, Esq.
Chief Counsel
Email: PAPO@nrc.gov
James M. Cutchin
Email: PAPO@nrc.gov
Jered Lindsay
Email: PAPO@nrc.gov
Marcia Carpentier*
Email: PAPO@nrc.gov
Margaret Parish
Email: PAPO@nrc.gov
Debra Wolf
Email: PAPO@nrc.gov
Bradley S. Baxter*
Email: bxm@nrc.gov

Daniel J. Graser
LSN Administrator
Email: djg2@nrc.gov
ASLBP HLW Adjudication
Email: ASLBP_HLW_Adjudication@nrc.gov
U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission
Office of the Secretary of the Commission
Mail Stop - O-16 C1
Washington, DC 20555-0001
Hearing Docket
Email: hearingdocket@nrc.gov
Andrew L. Bates
Email: alb@nrc.gov
Adria T. Byrdsong
Email: atb1@nrc.gov
Emile L. Julian, Esq.
Email: elj@nrc.gov
Evangeline S. Ngbea
Email: esn@nrc.gov
Rebecca L. Giitter
Email: rll@nrc.gov
U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission
Office of Congressional Affairs
Mail Stop O-17A3
U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission
Office of Public Affairs
Mail Stop O-2A13
David McIntyre
Email: dtm@nrc.gov

U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission
Office of the General Counsel
Mail Stop - O-15 D21
Washington, DC 20555-0001
Karen D. Cyr, Esq.*

General Counsel

Email: kdc@nrc.gov

Gwendolyn D. Hawkins

Email: gxm2@nrc.gov

Janice E. Moore, Esq.

Email: jem@nrc.gov

Trip Rothschild, Esq.*

Email: tbr@nrc.gov

Mitzi A. Young, Esq.

Email: may@nrc.gov

Marian L. Zobler, Esq.

Email: mlz@nrc.gov

Andrea L. Silvia, Esq.

Email: alc1@nrc.gov

Daniel Lenehan, Esq.

Email: dwl2@nrc.gov

Margaret J. Bupp

Email: mjb5@nrc.gov

OGCMailCenter

Email: OGCMailCenter@nrc.gov

Hunton & Williams LLP

Counsel for the U.S. Department of Energy

Riverfront Plaza, East Tower

951 East Byrd Street

Richmond, VA 23219

W. Jeffery Edwards, Esq.

Email: jedwards@hunton.com

Kelly L. Faglioni, Esq.

Email: kfaglioni@hunton.com

Melissa Grier

Email: mgrier@hunton.com

Donald P. Irwin, Esq.

Email: dirwin@hunton.com

Stephanie Meharg

Email: smeharg@hunton.com

Edward P. Noonan, Esq.

Email: enoonan@hunton.com

Audrey B. Rusteau

Email: arusteau@hunton.com

Michael R. Shebelskie, Esq.

Email: mshebelskie@hunton.com

Pat Slayton

Email: pslayton@hunton.com

Belinda A. Wright

Email: bwright@hunton.com

U.S. Department Of Energy

Office of General Counsel

1551 Hillshire Drive

Las Vegas, NV 89134-6321

George W. Hellstrom

Email: george.hellstrom@ymp.gov

U.S. Department of Energy

Office of General Counsel

1000 Independence Avenue, S.W.

Washington, DC 20585

Martha S. Crosland, Esq.

Email: martha.crosland@hq.doe.gov

Angela M. Kordyak, Esq.

Email: angela.kordyak@hq.doe.gov

Mary B. Neumayr, Esq.*

Email: mary.neumayr@hq.doe.gov

Carter Ledyard & Milburn, LLP

Counsel for Lincoln County

1401 Eye Street, N.W., Suite 300

Washington, DC 20005

Barry S. Neuman, Esq.

Email: neuman@clm.com

U.S. Department of Energy

1000 Independence Avenue, S.W.

Washington, DC 20585

Eric Knox, Associate Director, Systems

Operations and External Relations, OCRWM*

Email: eric.knox@hq.doe.gov

Dong Kim, LSN Project Manager, OCRWM*

Email: dong.kim@rw.doe.gov

Churchill, Esmeralda, Eureka, Mineral
and Lander Counties

1705 Wildcat Lane

Ogden, UT 84403

Loreen Pitchford, LSN Coordinator
for Lander County

Email: lpitchford@comcast.net

U.S. Department of Energy
 Office of Civilian Radioactive Waste Mgmt
 Office of Repository Development
 1551 Hillshire Drive
 Las Vegas, NV 89134-6321
 Timothy C. Gunter
 Email: timothy_gunter@ymp.gov

City of Las Vegas
 400 Stewart Ave.
 Las Vegas, NV 89101
 Margaret Plaster, Management Analyst
 Email: mplaster@LasVegasNevada.gov

Clark County (NV) Nuclear Waste Division
 500 S. Grand Central Parkway
 Las Vegas, NV 89155
 Irene Navis*
 Email: iln@co.clark.nv.us
 Engelbrecht von Tiesenhausen
 Email: evt@co.clark.nv.us

Nuclear Waste Project Office
 1761 East College Parkway, Suite 118
 Carson City, NV 89706
 Robert Loux
 Email: bloux@nuc.state.nv.us
 Steve Frishman, Tech. Policy Coordinator
 Email: steve.frishman@gmail.com

Eureka County and Lander County, Nevada
 Harmon, Curran, Speilberg & Eisenberg,
 LLP
 1726 M. Street N.W., Suite 600
 Washington, DC 20036
 Diane Curran, Esq.
 Email: dcurran@harmoncurran.com

Nevada Nuclear Waste Task Force
 P.O. Box 26177
 Las Vegas, NV 89126
 Judy Treichel, Executive Director
 Email: judyntwf@aol.com

Talisman International, LLC
 1000 Potomac St., N.W., Suite 300
 Washington, D.C. 20007
 Patricia Larimore
 Email: plarimore@talisman-intl.com

Nuclear Energy Institute
 1776 I Street, NW, Suite 400
 Washington, DC 20006-3708
 Michael A. Bauser, Esq.
 Associate General Counsel
 Email: mab@nei.org
 Anne W. Cottingham, Esq.
 Email: awc@nei.org
 Ellen C. Ginsberg, Esq.
 Email: ecg@nei.org
 Rod McCullum*
 Email: rxm@nei.org
 Steven P. Kraft*
 Email: spk@nei.org

White Pine County
 City of Caliente
 Lincoln County
 P.O. Box 126
 Caliente, NV 89008
 Jason Pitts
 Email: jayson@idtservices.com

Nuclear Information and Resource Service
 6930 Carroll Avenue, Suite 340
 Takoma Park, MD 20912
 Michael Mariotte, Executive Director*
 Email: nirsnet@nirs.org

Radioactive Waste Watchdog
 Beyond Nuclear
 6930 Carroll Avenue, Suite 400
 Takoma Park, MD 20912
 Kevin Kamps*
 Email: kevin@beyondnuclear.org

Yucca Mountain Project, Licensing Group,
DOE/BSC
Regulatory Programs
1180 North Town Center Drive
Las Vegas, NV 89144
Jeffrey Kriner
Email: jeffrey_kriner@ymp.gov

Abigail Johnson*
612 West Telegraph Street
Carson City, NV 89703
Email: abbyj@gbis.com

National Congress of American Indians
1301 Connecticut Ave. NW - Second floor
Washington, DC 20036
Robert I. Holden, Director*
Nuclear Waste Program
Email: robert_holden@ncai.org

Ross, Dixon & Bell
2001 K Street N.W.
Washington D.C. 20006-1040
William H. Briggs*
Email: wbriggs@rdblaw.com
Merril Hirsh, Esq.
Email: mhirsh@rdblaw.com

Churchill County (NV)
155 North Taylor Street, Suite 182
Fallon, NV 89406
Alan Kalt*
Email: comptroller@churchillcounty.org

Inyo County Water Department
Yucca Mtn Nuclear Waste
Repository Assessment Office
163 May St.
Bishop, CA 93514
Matt Gaffney, Project Associate*
Email: mgaffney@inyoyucca.org

Environmental Protection Agency
Ray Clark*
Email: clark.ray@epa.gov

Nuclear Waste Technical Review Board
Joyce Dory*
Email: dory@nwtrb.gov

Intertech Services Corporation
(for Lincoln County)
P.O. Box 2008
Carson City, NV 89702-2008
Dr. Mike Baughman*
Email: bigboff@aol.com

Nye County (NV) Department of Natural
Resources & Federal Facilities
1210 E. Basin Road, Suite 6
Pahrump, NV 89048
David Swanson*
Email: dswanson@nyecounty.net

Lincoln County (NV) Nuclear Oversight Prgm
100 Depot Ave., Suite 15; P.O. Box 1068
Caliente, NV 89008-1068
Lea Rasura-Alfano, Coordinator*
Email: jcciac@co.lincoln.nv.us

Nye County (NV) Regulatory/Licensing Adv.
18160 Cottonwood Rd. #265
Sunriver, OR 97707
Malachy Murphy*
Email: mrmurphy@cmc.net

Mineral County (NV) Board of County
Commissioners
P.O. Box 1600
Hawthorne, NV 89415
Linda Mathias, Administrator*
Office of Nuclear Projects
Email: yuccainfo@mineralcountynv.org

State of Nevada (NV)
100 N. Carson Street
Carson City, NV 89710
Marta Adams*
Email: maadams@ag.state.nv.us

White Pine County (NV) Nuclear
Waste Project Office
959 Campton Street
Ely, NV 89301
Mike Simon, Director*
(Heidi Williams, Adm. Assist.*)
Email: wpnucwst1@mwpower.net

Fredericks & Peebles, L.L.P.
1001 Second Street
Sacramento, CA 95814
916-441-2700
FAX 916-441-2067
Darcie L. Houck
Email: dhouck@ndnlaw.com
John M. Peebles*
Email: jpeebles@ndnlaw.com
Joe Kennedy, Chairman*
Email: chairman@timbisha.org
Barbara Durham*
Tribal Historic Preservation Officer
Email: dvdurbarbara@netscape.com

Counsel for the U.S. Department of Energy
Morgan, Lewis, Bockius LLP
1111 Pennsylvania Ave., NW
Washington, DC 20004
Lewis Csedrik, Esq.
E-mail: lsedrik@morganlewis.com
Jay Gutierrez, Esq.
E-mail: jguterrez@morganlewis.com
Thomas Poindexter, Esq.
E-mail: tpoindexter@morganlewis.com
Alex S. Polonsky, Esq.
E-mail: apolonsky@morganlewis.com
Thomas A. Schmutz, Esq.
E-mail: tschmutz@morganlewis.com
Donald Silverman, Esq.
E-mail: dsilverman@morganlewis.com
Paul J. Zaffuts, Esq.
E-mail: pzaffuts@morganlewis.com

(signed electronically)
Susan Montesi

Exhibit A

Exhibit A

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION

----- X
In the Matter of :
 : Docket No. PAPO-00
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY :
 : ASLBP No. 04-829-01-PAPO
(High Level Waste Repository: :
Pre-Application Matters) : February 28, 2008

----- X
Two White Flint North
ASLBP Hearing Room
T-3B45
11545 Rockville Pike
Rockville, Maryland

BEFORE:
THOMAS S. MOORE, Chairman
ALEX S. KARLIN, Administrative Judge
ALAN S. ROSENTHAL, Administrative Judge

1 APPEARANCES:

2 On behalf of U.S. Department of Energy:

3 MICHAEL SHEBELSKIE, Esquire

4 MARTHA CROSLAND, Esquire

5 Hunton & Williams

6

7 On behalf of State of Nevada:

8 CHARLES FITZPATRICK, Esquire

9 MERRIL HIRSCH, Esquire

10 Egan, Fitzpatrick, Malsch & Cynkar

1 P-R-O-C-E-E-D-I-N-G-S

2 (9:00 a.m.)

3 JUDGE MOORE: Please be seated.

4 Good morning. I'm Judge Thomas Moore.

5 On my left is Judge Alan Rosenthal. On my right is
6 Judge Alex Karlin.

7 The Pre-License Application Presiding
8 Officer Board is hearing argument this morning on
9 the Department of Energy's January 28th motion to
10 strike the State of Nevada's January 17th
11 certification that it had made available on the LSN
12 and all of its documentary material.

13 The argument this morning is being
14 recorded on the DDMS system. The terms for the
15 oral argument were set forth in our February 17, or I'm
sorry, our February 19th

16 order. Pursuant to that order, the Department of
17 Energy shall have one hour for argument and may
18 reserve up to fifteen minutes for rebuttal; to be
19 followed by the State of Nevada that will have one
20 hour of argument.

21 Would counsel now please identify
22 themselves for the Court Reporter?

23 MR. SHEBELSKIE: Your Honors, on behalf
24 of the Department of Energy, I'm Michael Shebelskie

1 with Hunton and Williams, counsel for the
2 Department of Energy.
3 MS. CROSLAND: And I'm Martha Crosland
4 with the Department of Energy's Office of General
5 Counsel.
6 MR. FITZPATRICK: I'm Charles Fitzpatrick
7 representing the State of Nevada with the firm
8 Egan, Fitzpatrick, and Malsch.
9 MR. HIRSCH: And I'm Merril Hirsch, also
10 representing the State of Nevada for the law firm
11 of Ross, Dixon and Bell. Also present is my
12 paralegal, Ms. Laurie Borski.
13 JUDGE MOORE: Mr. Shebelskie, you may
14 proceed.
15 MR. SHEBELSKIE: Thank you, Your Honor.
16 JUDGE MOORE: How much time do you wish
17 to reserve for rebuttal?
18 MR. SHEBELSKIE: I would like to reserve
19 fifteen minutes.
20 JUDGE MOORE: And I would remind counsel
21 that rebuttal is for that purpose only, to respond
22 to arguments made this morning by your opponent.
23 MR. SHEBELSKIE: Yes, sir.
24 JUDGE MOORE: Please proceed.

Deleted: y

1 MR. SHEBELSKIE: Yes, sir.
2 Your Honors, the Department of Energy
3 moves to strike Nevada's -- has moved to strike
4 Nevada's certification because upon our review of
5 the documents they have made available on the LSN,
6 it is quite apparent to us that they have not made
7 a substantial good faith effort to make available
8 all their existing documentary material.
9 In order to elucidate for the Court the
10 nature of their production, I would like to refer
11 the Court to exhibit, DOE Exhibit Z, which starts
12 on PDF page 38.
13 What that will show when you pull it up,
14 is we went to Nevada's LSN collection and we sort
15 of did a search on their document collection for
16 the documents that predate the retention of
17 Nevada's outside licensing counsel. We know from
18 the materials already in the record that the
19 outside counsel was hired on September 11th, 2001.
20 In their pleadings, Nevada said, well,
21 their experts really were not brought on board
22 until starting in 2003. But nonetheless, to be
23 conservative, we said let's do a search for all
24 documents that predate September 11th, 2001. And

1 there's the screen shot of the LSN search engine
2 looking for Nevada's collection for everything
3 predating September 2001.

4 If will you go forward two pages in that
5 exhibit, please, you will see the first screen shot
6 of the hit, you get 3,172 documents. What that
7 means, then, of the approximately, 47 or 4,800
8 documents Nevada has made available, almost 3,200
9 of those actually were documents before the
10 retention of their counsel, before the retention of
11 their team of experts to prepare for the licensing
12 procedure. Many of those documents, by the way, of
13 the approximately 3,200 actually predate even 1900.

14 And if you go to Exhibit Y, please, which
15 starts on PDF page 31, this is a screen shot of our
16 search where we -- you can see from the date range,
17 we picked up all documents prior to December 31st,
18 1989. And if you go forward two pages in that, on
19 the top line, you will see that you get 963 hits. And many
of
20 those documents, when you look at the results,
21 there you will see documents from the 1970s, '60s,
22 and even '50s.

23 So contrary to Nevada's representation
24 that unlike us they didn't have any old documents

1 that predated really their licensing preparation
2 efforts, really three quarters of their collection
3 does.

4 JUDGE ROSENTHAL: If I may interrupt. I
5 speak for myself only. Seems to me that you have
6 made a prima fascia case or arguably at least, have
7 made a prima fascia case that there are documentary
8 materials that Nevada should have had on the LSN
9 but have not placed them on the LSN.

10 Nevada has come back and said, no, all of
11 the documents that should be on the LSN are on the
12 LSN.

13 Now, that presents, it seems to me, a
14 factual issue. You are claiming, based upon what I
15 think, at least for me is largely speculation,
16 maybe just a fiber of speculation, that there are
17 documents that should have been on the LSN that are
18 not. And we have Nevada saying, no, all of our
19 stamped documentary material is on the LSN.

20 Now, my question for you is, how do you
21 think that the Board should address this factual
22 issue? Do you think we should be having a trial or
23 what, because as far as I can see, the basis of
24 what is before us, what you have presented and what

1 Nevada has presented, there is a factual issue that
2 simply cannot be resolved on the basis of this oral
3 argument this morning?

4 MR. SHEBELSKIE: Well, Your Honor, I have
5 two general responses. First, I think the Board
6 can, based on the present record and materials
7 before it, make the determination that Nevada has
8 not, in fact, produced all its documentary
9 material, because they have misapplied the
10 governing legal standard.

11 JUDGE MOORE: Now, where did you raise
12 that in your motion?

13 MR. SHEBELSKIE: As we said in our brief
14 on the second half of the legal argument section,
15 we pointed to the fact what Nevada had said in its
16 briefing to the Commission on its appeal to -- on
17 the denial of its motion to strike, that it was not
18 going to be able to make documents available,
19 because it would not know what its positions are in
20 the proceeding because it has not made available --
21 it has not had access to the TSPA final version or
22 to the LA. And until that point, it couldn't
23 possibly know what its positions are.

24 Now, contrast that statement, that

Deleted:

Deleted: o

1 position that they have put forth in pleadings with
2 what we know that the head of the Nevada agency has
3 said on numerous occasions, and that is that
4 Nevada's experts have been working for the past
5 several years doing two major activities. One is
6 reviewing and critiquing our work --

7 JUDGE MOORE: And that, for whatever it's
8 ~~worth, is basically putting it most~~
9 diplomatically puffery. I mean, we have to be very
10 careful here about those who live in glass houses
11 throwing stones. I mean, if we are going to go
12 back and look at all of DOE statements about when
13 they were going to file an application, we can get
14 into this. I don't think it gets us anywhere.
15 My point is simply that on page 31 of
16 your motion, the closest you come to challenging
17 what Nevada has said as to the propriety of -- your
18 challenge to the propriety of their putting -- their
misconstruing

19 what documentary material is, is on page 31 of your
20 motion, wherein a listing of five items you refer
21 to your Exhibit H, which is your exhibit, that they
22 have seemingly been under inclusive in some
23 documents, which seems to point at their call memo
24 and the examples in that call memo.

Deleted: is

1 You didn't analyze it. You didn't say
2 what the rule of law was. You gave us nothing to
3 go on. You certainly can't tell me that you have
4 properly raised that issue with that brief
5 reference of less than a sentence in your motion.
6 That's where I'm having trouble with this. Had you
7 raised that, you might then have at least put it
8 into the context of a legal issue. But now it's
9 strictly a factual issue, as I see it; and I, for
10 the life of me, absent a trial, don't see how we
11 can decide what are, perhaps, disputed issues of
12 fact.

13 MR. SHEBELSKIE: Your Honor, on that,
14 take two examples that we -- that we noted,
15 certainly discussed in the briefs.
16 We noted, for example, the number of
17 progress reports from two geosciences consulting
18 firms, Geoscience Management and Geoscience
19 Consultants. And we showed that what they had
20 made available showed a paper trail of their work
21 product up until April 2005, and then the
22 production stops. Yet, the work -- the last documentation
23 shows that their work was, in fact, continuing.
24 They were still doing experiments. They were still

Deleted: they

1 doing calculations. So there should be documentary
2 material created in the course of that future work.
3 It's not been available.

4 We can't tell you, because it doesn't
5 ultimately matter where the breakdown was in
6 Nevada's system. It doesn't matter to us whether
7 the experts misconstrued the guidance and just
8 forgot to turn it in --

9 JUDGE MOORE: You said "should."

10 MR. SHEBELSKIE: Not "should." It is.

11 JUDGE MOORE: Well, you said "should."

12 Your whole brief is premised on speculation that in
13 your view, under your assumptions, these documents
14 should be there. They have come back and rebutted
15 your prima fascia case and said, we have looked at
16 every document, we have applied our standards, and
17 everything that should be there is there; and they
18 have taken you to task on some of your searches, et
19 cetera, et cetera, and showed that some of the
20 things that you claimed are supposed to -- are not
21 there are, in fact, there.

22 That is a classic example of a motion
23 where you had the burden, you made arguably a
24 prima fascia case. That prima fascia case was

Deleted:

Deleted: o

Deleted: ve

Deleted: and

1 rebutted. Now we have disputed issues of fact.
2 Judge Rosenthal's question was: How do we
3 decide this motion when we have before us disputed
4 issues of fact without some kind of a fact trial?
5 MR. SHEBELSKIE: Right. Well, obviously, under
6 the Subpart J regulations, we have no means
7 available to us to conduct discovery, attain access
8 to their documentary production. All we can do as
9 a movant, then, is look at their production on its
10 face, juxtapose it against their statements that
11 they have prepared so far, 2,000 contentions. We
12 can look at the fact that they have made available
13 e-mails of one expert. We mention that in the
14 brief, and I put in as Exhibit AA, a collection of
15 that expert's e-mails. And I would like to pull
16 that exhibit up, please. That's PDF page 45.
17 Because what that shows you here is these
18 are the group of e-mails from Aaron Barkatt, this
19 was the only e-mails from many of their experts
20 that they produced, and we mentioned there were 50
21 some e-mails under one heading. And these emails
22 span a period of 2001 to 2004.
23 Now, it is -- we can look through
24 examples here -- but I want to set the stage, it is

Deleted: for you

Deleted: --

1 inconceivable -- Nevada has already agreed that these
2 are documentary material, and that we can go
3 through them with e-mails and look at them later
4 also to see that these are substantive e-mails
5 discussing substantive topics, discussing potential
6 contentions and the grounds for contentions.

7 JUDGE ROSENTHAL: This again,
8 Mr. Shebelskie, as Judge Moore has indicated,
9 establishes a prima fascia case. But you are
10 confronted again with the fact that Nevada has
11 explicitly denied that there is any documentary
12 material that should be on the LSN that is not.
13 They put forth a denial.
14 Now, for the life of me, I can't
15 understand how you can suggest that there's
16 anything but a factual issue before this Board.
17 You make a claim, you made a prima fascia case and
18 you have had --

19 MR. SHEBELSKIE: All right, Your Honor, to that
20 point, I would agree with you, that if you credit
21 Nevada's denial on its face that creates a dispute
22 of fact and would require factual resolution.
23 My point is using these e-mails as just
24 an example, it can't be with their team of 30 or 45

1 experts that these are the only e-mails created
2 over an eight-year period with all that personnel,
3 the development of 2,000 contentions, doing all the
4 work they don't deny that they have done, that
5 qualify as documentary material.

Deleted: given

6 JUDGE ROSENTHAL: That is a
7 circumstantial case. But it certainly, it seems to
8 me, cannot be said that that is dispositive against
9 the denial. It seems to me that in these
10 circumstances, given that your case is
11 circumstantial, that there is an issue of fact that
12 in order to sustain your motion would have to be
13 adjudicated in some form. And what I'm getting at
14 is how, assuming that we conclude contrary to your
15 view that your circumstantial case does not carry
16 the day, how do we go forward?

17 MR. SHEBELSKIE: Well, what Nevada has
18 not told us -- well, then we would need to develop
19 a factual record to respond to those issues or
20 concerns or to their purported denials of our prima
21 fascia case, which obviously, before filing the
22 motion we have no means available for us to do
23 that.

24 For example, with the e-mails, they say

1 they have been telling their experts since 2003 to save
2 everything, save all their e-mails, not just the
3 people who got the call memo, but anybody else down
4 in the chain that they dealt with. What we don't
5 know is then how many e-mails did they collect?
6 Because they said that --

7 JUDGE MOORE: Mr. Shebelskie, you might
8 have made it a little easier had you asked for
9 discovery. But you didn't ask for discovery, did
10 you?

11 MR. SHEBELSKIE: We did not ask for any
12 discovery, Your Honor, because we believe that on
13 it -- what we know from the absence of their
14 production that they have -- they said they were
15 going to apply improper standard and then, in fact,
16 their production, shows it --

17 JUDGE MOORE: Let's take it a step back.
18 On footnote 117 of your January 28th motion, you
19 state that, and I quote: "Counsel for DOE
20 conferred with counsel for the State of Nevada
21 prior to filing the motion. In accordance with 10
22 CFR section 2.323 (b), DOE certifies that it made a
23 sincere effort to resolve the issues raised in this
24 motion but still seeks the relief discussed above."

Deleted: 1

Deleted: --

Deleted: B

1 On what date -- now as I see it, that
2 provision is in the rules in part to alleviate the
3 very problem which we find ourselves in today.

4 That if in such circumstances, counsel sit down
5 and make a sincere effort to resolve these matters
6 before they bring it to the Board, certainly some
7 and in this instance, Nevada has pointed in the
8 three documents that you claim, specifically
9 claimed weren't there, all of them are there, which
10 demonstrates that maybe there is some wisdom behind

11 323 (b), in the regulations. That it will at least
12 narrow the field, if not eliminate these disputes.

13 On what date and at what time did DOE
14 counsel meet with counsel for the State of Nevada
15 under the 10 CFR 2.323(b) requirement in your
16 certification that you comply?

17 MR. SHEBELSKIE: We met on the -- we
18 conferred for two hours on the morning of the date
19 we filed the motion. We e-mailed them -- that was
20 a Monday, if I recall. We e-mailed them over the
21 weekend and said, we have now reviewed your
22 production; we have questions; we need to confer --

23 JUDGE MOORE: Okay, so on the same day you
24 filed the motion, earlier in that day, you met with

Deleted: s

Deleted: B

Deleted: B

Deleted: s

1 DOE. So your motion -- with Nevada. So your
2 motion was ready to go? And --

3 MR. SHEBELSKIE: By the way, Your Honor,
4 when they filed their motion against us in 2004,
5 they called us within the hour and said they were
6 filing it. So let's not be too sanctimonious about
7 this.

8 JUDGE MOORE: Well, today I only have yours in
9 front of me.

10 MR. SHEBELSKIE: But what we discussed,
11 Your Honor, in that conference --

12 JUDGE MOORE: That's what I would like to
13 get to, what did you discuss?

14 MR. SHEBELSKIE: Right. We discussed --

15 JUDGE MOORE: Well, let me run through
16 some of the things. I would like to know very
17 specifically how you complied with 323 (b).

18 First of all, on page 20 and 21 of your
19 motion, DOE claims that Nevada did not produce on
20 the LSN three things: A memorandum by Michael
21 Thorne on volcanic probability calculations; two, a
22 report on the first phase of something called
23 cheeseball experiments; and three, a white paper by
24 Dr. Thorne on corrosion issues.

Deleted: T

Deleted: B

1 Nevada then on its answer on page 12 says
 2 that had you merely asked for those documents,
 3 which you did not, according to them, they would
 4 have produced them; and in point of fact, they
 5 point out over the next pages of their Answer that
 6 all three of those are, in fact, in the LSN
 7 collection, and that your search queries left a lot
 8 to be desired which is why you didn't find them.

Deleted:

Deleted: o

9 Now, is it accurate what Nevada says in
 10 its Answer that did you not raise with Nevada on
 11 that January 28th meeting, those three specific
 12 documents that are -- about which you make an issue of in
 your
 13 motion?

14 MR. SHEBELSKIE: I know we discussed Mike
 15 Thorne documents. We discussed the cheeseball
 16 experiments. Those specific documents I don't
 17 recall, Your Honor. And certainly I would agree,
 18 we did not sit down and go over specifically the --
 19 necessarily any of the specific accession numbers or
 20 documents in here. So, but let me -- we rely, Your Honor

Deleted: s

Deleted: --

Deleted: --

21 JUDGE MOORE: I have gone through your
 22 motion and I have a list of approximately 26 claims
 23 of documents and types of documents. And in the
 24 exhibits you cite, certainly inferentially, that that

1 document is not or class of documents or types of
2 documents are not there.

3 Now, you may quibble with my listing of
4 26, but I think it is a fairly accurate number.
5 Now, I can go through that from one to 26, if you
6 would like this morning, but let's start by saying,
7 did each of those 26 clearly factual issues that
8 you were raising in your motion, did you discuss
9 those specifically with Nevada counsel and in a
10 sincere attempt to resolve those? Yes or no?

11 MR. SHEBELSKIE: Well, I will say yes.

12 Now, the exact 26 that you have in mind --

JUDGE MOORE: Well, then, let's go

Mr. SHEBELSKIE: Let, let -- then, I'll

13 explain the general terms. First, we talked about
14 what were your procedures, what procedures did you
15 follow. We have gotten three documents from the
16 City of Las Vegas, they have given to us saying
17 these were procedures they had got.

18 When we inquired about them, whether they
19 were authentic, whether there were other copies,
20 Nevada's response was we are not here to provide
21 you with any discovery, we don't have to answer
22 those questions. So that was shut down.

23 The whole topic of e-mails, we discussed

Deleted: --

Formatted: Indent: First line: 0.5"

Deleted: wi

24 very extensively: How come there were only the few

1 e-mails that are --

2 JUDGE MOORE: What were their answers?

3 MR. SHEBELSKIE: Their answers were

4 invariably, e-mails are not documentary material,
5 we are not citing or relying on e-mails, and we
6 don't have to give you any further information. We
7 are not here for you to conduct discovery.

8 We discussed the number of documents that
9 they had, why there were only that number. We
10 discussed why there were only limited numbers from
11 the various experts, why the documents from the --
12 like 2005, '6, '7 were absent. Their general
13 response was we have applied our standard. We have
14 conducted our review. We are not conducting
15 discovery for you.

16 JUDGE ROSENTHAL: If I may interrupt you
17 a second.

18 On page 15 of its response, Nevada says
19 the following: "Nevada's counsel entered the
20 conference with the resolution that any documentary
21 material specifically identified by DOE as lacking
22 in Nevada's LSN database would be promptly
23 provided. Nevada purposely stated this position at
24 least five times during the conference so there

Deleted: per

1 would be no ground for the assertion that any
2 specific document was being refused or that an
3 impasse would ever be reached."

4 Now is that true?

5 MR. SHEBELSKIE: They said and I'm sure
6 they said -- and they said multiple times, give us
7 any specific example you can identify of a document
8 we didn't make available, we will make it
9 available.

10 JUDGE KARLIN: Can I then ask a question?
11 Lacking any discovery, how could you ask for a
12 e-mail which you didn't know the specific existence
13 of?

14 MR. SHEBELSKIE: That's our point, Your
15 Honor. All we could say is there effectively is no
16 production of e-mails, so we can't tell you there
17 should be 10,000 or 15,000 or 20,000.

18 JUDGE KARLIN: And did you have any specific
19 e-mails in your possession of Nevada's that you
20 thought were documentary material but they had
21 failed to put on the LSN?

22 MR. SHEBELSKIE: We had the 54 or so
23 e-mails --

24 JUDGE KARLIN: No, no. Not the ones --

Deleted: D

1 MR. SHEBELSKIE: What we did with that,
2 because that's all we had.

3 JUDGE KARLIN: Okay, the only ones you
4 had were the ones they put on. So you could not
5 identify a specific document and say you failed to
6 put this document on, this e-mail on, because you
7 didn't have it?

8 MR. SHEBELSKIE: Right. What we said,
9 Your Honor, was how could these e-mails from
10 Professor Barkatt be the only ones that qualify as
11 documentary material and everybody else is not, how
12 could that be? What is the standard? What is the
13 rationale?

14 And they said we are not going to answer.
15 We sent our call memo. We got what we got, and
16 that's the standard.

17 JUDGE ROSENTHAL: Did you ask them for
18 the three documents that you cited in your motion,
19 which turns out happened to be on the LSN? Those
20 documents were ones that you were specifically
21 aware of. Did you request them during the
22 conference?

23 MR. SHEBELSKIE: As I said, I'm confident
24 that we did not ask specifically for all of them,

1 of those three. I know we did talk about Mike
2 Thorne documents and the cheeseball experiments,
3 because we said we saw reference to these and there
4 are documents referenced in the Thorne memos that
5 we had available that refer to like a Victor
6 Gilinsky e-mail.

7 I don't believe those three -- I don't
8 want to say we discussed specifically those
9 three via accession numbers or documents. We talked
10 generally about the topic that was the
11 laboratory -- for example, the laboratory in China
12 that was doing these corrosion experiments called
13 the cheeseball project, did they get the call memo,
14 did they produce documents because we don't see
15 their work product.

16 Now, what Nevada has pointed out too is here
17 is a published article. Okay, that's fine. But
18 what we were talking about is where are the
19 laboratory notebooks of that laboratory in China?
20 Where are their e-mails? Where are their

21 electronic files of documentary material, not just
22 the published article? We weren't asking about
23 that. We were asking about a broader scope of
24 production from that laboratory.

Deleted: s

Deleted: for

1 JUDGE MOORE: Well, let's look at one of the
 2 other on my list of 26. You specifically in
 3 several places in your motion, on pages 14 and 15
 4 and 33, you specifically raise the issue that there
 5 are no contentions included in any of the LSN
 6 document collection.

7 In your meeting on January 28th, did you
 8 specifically raise the issue with Nevada's counsel
 9 and did you request any documents that contain
 10 contentions?

11 MR. SHEBELSKIE: Yes. We discussed that
 12 quite at length. And not only -- we talked about the
 13 contentions, and their discussion that they had not
 14 prepared contentions. We had a lot of debate
 15 about, then why did Mr. Loux then just that month
 16 tell the Nevada committee, they had prepared 2,000
 17 contentions. And Nevada, in response to that said,
 18 well, it is because we have nothing finalized, we
 19 don't know what our positions are until we have the
 20 license application.

21 We had a very extensive discussion about
 22 that, and not just the draft contentions, Your
 23 Honor, but we were also --

24 JUDGE MOORE: But you would concede that

Deleted: -- allotted Mr. Loux

Deleted: about a

Deleted: 's

Deleted: was, ¶

1 a draft contention is a draft and does not have to
2 be filed in their LSN collection, would you not?

3 MR. SHEBELSKIE: A draft contention, yes.

4 But here is our point. In order for them to
5 develop at this point and time this working
6 presumptive list of their 2,000 draft contentions,
7 that has to be based on something. It has to be
8 based on quite substantial work, we would posit, of
9 internal analyses, of their review and critique of
10 our work product, their independent research, their
11 commentary and discussion back and forth, and there
12 are examples of those and very limited examples in
13 Professor Aaron Barkatt's e-mails that we made an
14 exhibit.

15 Our point to Nevada was there has to be
16 embodied in what would be considered final
17 documents, information that underlies and supports
18 and that relates to those draft contentions you
19 have established. And that becomes the benchmark,
20 then, for you in this point in time to identify
21 what is your Class I documentary material, your
22 supporting information, what are you presumptively relying
on --

23 JUDGE MOORE: So you are claiming that
24 all that material would be reliance material?

1 MR. SHEBELSKIE: Absolutely. What -- to the -- In this
2 pre-license --

3 JUDGE MOORE: So if I have ten
4 hypothetical contentions, all of them admittedly,
5 very rough, very draft and they can't possibly be
6 finalized because I have not seen your application
7 yet, nor have I seen your draft application,
8 that -- and I don't know whether I'm going to file
9 these because I haven't seen a draft or a final
10 application, that that's reliance material?

11 Reliance on what?

12 MR. SHEBELSKIE: Yes, Your Honor. Let me
13 address that, because that really does go to the
14 heart of their position.

15 This argument that until they get the
16 final LA and until they get the TSPA they don't
17 have any idea what their positions are --

18 JUDGE MOORE: And also fill in for me
19 where you raise this argument in your motion.

20 MR. SHEBELSKIE: Yes. Well, Your Honor, the --

21 JUDGE MOORE: Chapter and verse.

22 MR. SHEBELSKIE: The second half of the
23 legal argument, Section B, where we address this
24 was their position, and we addressed it chapter and

Deleted:

Deleted: o

1 verse, I believe, Your Honor. Because what we have
2 said is there are a number of topics that Nevada is
3 planning to file contentions on. That's in that
4 petition for funds that appears as Exhibit D to our
5 brief.

6 And starting on page 10 of that exhibit,
7 and it goes on for some 15 or so pages, there is a
8 listing of subject matters, wide ranging subject
9 matters. Under each of those, there's a series of
10 bullet points of all kind of topics. None of that
11 deals with the TSPA. I mean TSPA is one of them,
12 but there are many, many, many other topics:

13 Corrosion, biosphere, QA issues, et cetera, et
14 cetera.

15 Nevada has been looking at our

16 documents -- and this petition for funds, if you go to
17 page 10 of that, which is PDF page 72, going on and
18 on, they have been analyzing our work product,
19 developing contentions, analyzing our assumptions.

20 That's what Mr. Loux has said time and time again
21 that they are doing, and developing their own
22 independent research.

23 They have a body of information that they
24 are presumptively relying on for these working

Deleted: we

Deleted: i

1 list of 2,000 contentions or topics, call them
2 what you will. And the Commission had this in mind
3 back in the summer of 2004 in its rulemaking, its
4 final rulemaking on the LSN when it talks about
5 that the production obligation for the good faith
6 effort requires that the parties make available at
7 the time of their certifications required under
8 Subpart J, all of the documentary material that may
9 eventually be designated as Class I and Class II.
10 Now, what does that really mean? In the
11 real world -- Nevada has not been sitting idle --
12 JUDGE MOORE: -- say that that should be
13 brought up not in front of PAPO but on a
14 document-by-document basis?
15 MR. SHEBELSKIE: If it were a document, a
16 isolated document-by-document issue. This is a
17 categorical issue.
18 The reality is Nevada uniquely, among
19 other potential interveners, has not been really
20 sort of sitting there passively for the past seven
21 years. They have been organizing what they call a
22 world class opposition to the license application.
23 They are not waiting until they get to LA to begin
24 their analysis in the development of contentions.

1 They have been working feverishly at the
2 cost of several tens of millions of dollars to --
3 JUDGE MOORE: Posit for the moment that
4 my ten hypothetical contentions, and they have been
5 doing just what you surmise they have been doing.
6 And in doing that, they conclude that you are right
7 and they just aren't going to file those
8 contentions. Now, is that reliance material?

9 MR. SHEBELSKIE: Yes, at this point in
10 time --

11 JUDGE MOORE: Pray tell how?

Deleted: e

12 MR. SHEBELSKIE: Well, first of all, they
13 have much of our work product on the 90 to 150,
14 however you want to look at it; analysis model
15 reports have been made available not only on the
16 LSN but through public means, over the websites for
17 years. They have been tracking along. It's not
18 like suddenly when our IA comes out, there are going to
19 be brand new different science in it that they have
20 not been tracking and following along.

21 And if at this point in time, they have a
22 very reasonable understanding and expectation on
23 many different topics and issues what the science
24 is, what our technology is. They have a pretty

1 good working assumption.

2 Now, will they have other contentions

3 they may develop when they get the final LA? Sure.

4 May they modify some? Sure. May they ultimately

5 decide not to advance certain contentions that they

6 have developed at this point? Possibly.

7 JUDGE MOORE: So you are telling me that

8 reliance today is different from the reliance

9 tomorrow?

10 MR. SHEBELSKIE: No. Reliance today

11 means -- in good faith, reliance today has to mean

12 what you reasonably expect to rely on now. Because

13 if that were true, Your Honor, then DOE view

14 could have been, well, until we file the LA, then

15 everything is subject to change --

16 JUDGE MOORE: Oh, no, no wait. Hold tight. Correct me if

17 I'm wrong, but do you not have an obligation in

18 filing an application to meet all -- each and every

19 requirement in Part 60 and Part 63?

20 MR. SHEBELSKIE: We have those

21 obligations, but our supporting documentations are

22 always subject to change until they're actually filed -- we

actually file the

23 license application. We have not sat on our

24 reports and studies to make them available, even

Deleted: 's

1 though they're revised, --
 2 JUDGE MOORE: The fact that you didn't
 3 in no way, shape or form says that you didn't -- that that
 was

4 documentary material. I mean you did play somewhat
 5 of a needle in a haystack game here with 35 million
 6 pages of documents of which, by any estimation,
 7 some considerable portion of that is probably not
 8 documentary material. It is extraneous at best.
 9 So, what you did really does not help us answer the
 10 question of what should be done.

11 MR. SHEBELSKIE: Your Honor, when the
 12 Commission created the LSN production regime as the
 13 substitute for document production, post docketing
 14 where we don't have even document requests, it
 15 obviously knew that Nevada would have to make its
 16 LSN certification before we filed the LA. If
 17 someone -- if Nevada could just take the expedient
 18 of saying it ain't final, our contentions ain't
 19 final until they're final, until we file them,
 20 then they would have, in effect, no obligation to
 21 produce any documents in the pre-license period.

22 That position can't be what was intended
 23 in good faith by the Commission when they talked
 24 about a good-faith production. The reality here,

Deleted: rely

Deleted:

Deleted: o

Deleted: a

1 the practical fact is Nevada, obviously, has been
2 working and has prepared a body of information that
3 they anticipate DOE is gonna rely on and that they are
4 going to challenge on these grounds.

Deleted: will

5 JUDGE MOORE: To this point, I have a
6 factual dispute, indeed I even have a factual
7 dispute over whether the certification that you
8 have filed and they dispute is legitimate is to be
9 accepted at face value.

10 So I have a factual dispute and I have a
11 situation where it appears to me it is not a
12 question of what at some point will have to be put
13 in the LSN; it is a question of when it has to be
14 put in. Because they said they have collected
15 everything. They were very explicit, throw nothing
16 out and we have made the documentary material
17 determination.

18 MR. SHEBELSKIE: What Nevada has not said
19 in their brief is that amongst this body of
20 documents that they collected and preserved, that
21 there is this large group or any group, however you
22 want to characterize it, sitting sort of in limbo
23 that they are going to come back to and revisit and
24 produce later.

1 Their procedures don't call for them to
 2 go back and re-review that information. In their
 3 brief, they didn't say there was going to be a
 4 substantive production of this information.

5 What they said is we told our experts to
 6 give us everything you have developed that you are

7 going to cite -- potentially, cite and rely on in the
 8 proceeding. We have made it all available. That

Deleted: etition,

9 is not facially plausible.

Deleted: --

10 JUDGE MOORE: Don't their call memos also say
 11 save everything in your Yucca file, save all your
 12 e-mails, don't throw any of it out because it may
 13 be subject to discovery?

14 MR. SHEBELSKIE: It says that. Their

15 examples also say --

16 JUDGE MOORE: Okay, but you just said they don't
 17 say anything like that in their brief.

Deleted: y

18 MR. SHEBELSKIE: Well, they don't say
 19 they are going back to re-review all of their

20 documents at some point in time, because they 're going to,
 21 ripen, into documentary material. They are

Deleted: will

Deleted: write it

22 talking about potential derivative discovery in

23 connection with depositions. That's what that call memo --

Deleted: c

24 JUDGE MOORE: But certainly if the collection

1 is there, they have the capability of doing that.

2 MR. SHEBELSKIE: All right. But the point is we are

3 not -- we, the staff, other interveners aren't --

4 the burden is not on us to go to pull out this

5 documentary material from the State sometime down

6 the road after docketing it and try to get it all

7 through subpoenas.

8 There is an obligation on Nevada now, in

9 the pre-license period, to be forthcoming in it and

10 produce that information now that they in good

11 faith have a reasonable expectation may eventually

12 become their supporting documentary material, and

13 cannot rely on the expedient legalism that until we

14 file our contentions nothing is final.

15 In addition, if you look at the call

16 memo, the example in this 2007 call memo, their

17 examples that they give is this Exhibit C to that

18 call memo, where they talk about e-mails among

19 their experts discussing their draft contentions,

20 they say none of that can be category one

21 information. Yet, we know from Professor

22 Barkatt's e-mails, the few examples that they have

23 given us, that in that discussion you can see

24 substantive discussion that contains information,

Deleted:

Deleted: o

Deleted: the

1 where it is talking about their contentions.
 2 Those e-mails are final documents and can
 3 contain information that embodies what they are
 4 going to support and rely on. To categorically
 5 exclude all of their e-mails, other than Professor
 6 Barkatt's on this notion that, -- well, because they are
 7 not going to cite an e-mail, whatever they say in
 8 the e-mails is not going to be documentary material
 9 is an improper legal standard. Certainly not the
 10 standard they said DOE had to apply to the
 11 production of its e-mails.

12 JUDGE ROSENTHAL: Once again,
 13 Mr. Shebelskie, and I speak only for myself, I
 14 think you make out a prima fascia case. But it
 15 still seems to me that what we have here is a
 16 factual issue, and I'm still interested in knowing
 17 how, assuming that that is the case, we should go
 18 about at this point dealing with it. I mean, you
 19 have set forth the reasons why you believe that
 20 there is material that Nevada has not produced that
 21 should have been produced. And for the sake of
 22 argument, maybe you make a persuasive case.

23
 24 We are still faced with the fact that

Deleted: ey

Deleted: --

Deleted: in that

Deleted: regard.

1 Nevada said it has made its search, every piece of
2 documentary material that is stamped has been put
3 on the LSN. To me, that presents a factual issue,
4 and I'm still uncertain as to just how we proceed
5 how to deal with that.

6 In dealing with the prior motions to
7 strike, we had clear legal issues, and we were able
8 to dispose of those motions -- once against you and
9 once in your favor -- without having to make any
10 kind of factual inquiry. But to me and my
11 colleagues might differ -- but to me, there is a
12 factual issue here and I don't see how we can
13 decide the motion to strike on the basis of the
14 papers that we now have before us.

15 MR. SHEBELSKIE: Well, I think one way you can
16 address that, Your Honor, is to inquire of Nevada,
17 who will come right after me, as to what standard
18 did they apply in deciding what was documentary
19 material Class I, their reliance material or did
20 they take the position as they said in the briefs
21 to the Commission they would, that they could not
22 identify their supporting material at this time
23 because they have not done final contention, quote,
24 unquote, final contentions.

1 If that was the standard they applied, I
2 would posit to you that that is a legal question
3 and it poses the legal issue that they have applied
4 an improper legal standard, and they would have to
5 re-review their collection against both e-mails
6 and other documents according to the proper
7 standard. Beyond --

Deleted: im

Deleted: those

8 JUDGE MOORE: Didn't you have every
9 opportunity in your Exhibit H where you have their
10 call memo and their examples and instructions --
11 admittedly, there were lots of other materials they
12 put out with it -- but to specifically bring that
13 up in your brief explain how that under
14 represents, over represents, analyze it and present
15 it as a legal issue? You didn't do that.

Deleted: ing

16 MR. SHEBELSKIE: Well, Your Honor, we
17 believe we did. In our brief discussed that they
18 had --

19 JUDGE MOORE: Putting in an exhibit does n't
20 get it, at least where I come from.

Deleted: not

21 JUDGE KARLIN: May I ask a question or
22 two on some of these points? On the call memo,
23 let's talk about the call memo, could pull your
24 brief up. Could you -- could you -- Do you have your brief
in front of you?

1 I'd ask you to go to page 31 of your
2 brief. This is the passage that Judge Moore, I
3 think, alluded to earlier. And in the middle of
4 the page, you have a paragraph that starts:
5 "Nevada's call memos show the following," and then
6 you discuss several things.

7 And I think it is the fourth point that
8 the latter call memo, and I think that is your DOE
9 Exhibit H -- do you have the page, page 31 of your
10 brief --

11 MR. SHEBELSKIE: Yes.

12 JUDGE KARLIN: -- of your motion to
13 strike?

14 The latter call memo seemingly advised~~d~~,
15 recipients to omit critical commentary about
16 Nevada's work product and favorable commentary
17 about DOE's.

18 Is that where you raise the defects with
19 regard to Exhibit H, in part?

20 MR. SHEBELSKIE: Yes. Judge Moore, we could have been
21 more explicit. I see that.

22 JUDGE KARLIN: Let's go to page 32. On
23 page 32 I think you have further discussion under
24 paragraph B, Nevada's justification for its

Deleted: s

Deleted: w

Deleted: that is

1 incomplete production is erroneous. And I think
2 here you raise what I understand your argument here
3 to be today, which is that Nevada has taken the
4 position, at least in its appeal brief to the
5 Commission that it can't possibly know what its
6 positions are -- I think you quote -- Nevada,
7 quote, cannot possibly know, for the most part,
8 what it will cite or intend to rely upon.

9 Now, is that reliance material?

10 MR. SHEBELSKIE: Yes. And s starting in the
11 sections where we made this legal argument.

Deleted: s

12 JUDGE KARLIN: And then you say later at
13 the end of that, left unsaid, presumably, is the
14 corollary that Nevada also cannot identify non
15 supporting information at this time. That is DM2
16 as we called it.

Deleted: are

17 And then you go on to discuss that, as
18 you have today, on page 33 with regard to the
19 thousands of contentions that have been prepared,
20 albeit draft, and that necessarily in preparing
21 those contentions they would have developed
22 supporting information and non-supporting
23 information.

24 Is that right?

1 MR. SHEBELSKIE: Yes, sir.

2 JUDGE KARLIN: And then you go on to say,

3 I guess somewhere at the end -- on page 34, were

4 Nevada's position accepted, the LSN regulations

5 would be essentially meaningless as applied to

6 everyone but DOE. And I think that's what you're -- I'm

7 hearing you saying today.

8 MR. SHEBELSKIE: Yes.

9 JUDGE KARLIN: Okay. So let me then turn

10 to another subject, which has concerned my

11 colleagues, and I think is worthy of discussion,

12 which is, well, there's a factual issue here and

13 what are we to do, what are we to do? It is a very

14 difficult problem.

15 Let me ask, I think, were there not

16 factual issues raised with regard to Nevada's

17 motion the strike in 2004?

18 MR. SHEBELSKIE: There were.

19 JUDGE KARLIN: And at that time did we

20 not ask -- put together a series of interrogatories

21 requiring factual responses by DOE?

22 MR. SHEBELSKIE: You did.

23 JUDGE KARLIN: Is that one mechanism we

24 could use vis-à-vis Nevada to resolve some of these

Deleted: i

Deleted: whether

Deleted: i

Deleted: in

Deleted: its

1 factual issues?

2 MR. SHEBELSKIE: Absolutely. Yes, sir.

3 JUDGE KARLIN: Would it be possible --

4 was, there not factual issues raised with regard to

Deleted: ere

5 Nevada's motion for declaratory judgment, which we

6 declined to grant because of there were factual

7 issues?

8 MR. SHEBELSKIE: Yes.

9 JUDGE KARLIN: But there were factual

10 issues there and we were concerned about that?

11 MR. SHEBELSKIE: Yes. That particular

12 motion was forward looking.

13 JUDGE KARLIN: Right. And we said we would wait

14 until an actual certification occurred before we could

15 figure out what the facts are vis-à-vis what you

Deleted: is

16 did.

17 MR. SHEBELSKIE: And then once we

18 certified, they filed a motion that raised just a

19 legal issue as they described it.

20 JUDGE KARLIN: Right, their motion raised

21 -- at the time, we all thought there were both

22 factual and legal issues raised in Nevada's second

23 motion to strike, although we ended up resolving it

24 simply on the legal issues. Would you agree with

1 that?

2 MR. SHEBELSKIE: You resolved it on the
3 legal issue. I had always understood it as a legal
4 issue, their motion -- their second motion to
5 strike.

6 JUDGE KARLIN: If we get into -- If we are trying to
7 resolve whether or not a party has in good faith
8 substantially complied with its duty to produce all
9 its all documentary material, some of those cases
10 might be resolved on strictly legal basis, but I
11 would think most of them would also involve a
12 factual component.

13 MR. SHEBELSKIE: Yes, sir.

14 JUDGE KARLIN: So what's the surprising
15 difficulty here that we have a factual component
16 here? Now, is it possible that this Board has the
17 authority to authorize DOE to conduct some limited
18 discovery, several depositions, a limited number of
19 interrogatories with Nevada -- and we will ask
20 Nevada this as well -- to try to resolve some of
21 these factual issues?

22 MR. SHEBELSKIE: I believe you have that
23 authority in addition to the authority --

24 JUDGE KARLIN: -- in addition to just asking our own

1 series of questions. Do we have the authority to
2 ask certain witnesses to come up and testify like
3 Mr. Loux?

4 MR. SHEBELSKIE: Yes. And in fact, in
5 2004 I believe Mr. Graser, the LSN administrator,
6 was called upon to testify.

7 JUDGE KARLIN: And those were factual
8 issues that he spoke to, were they not, not legal?

9 MR. SHEBELSKIE: Yes, sir.

10 JUDGE KARLIN: Okay, so I --

11 MR. SHEBELSKIE: We never disagreed that
12 you have the legal authority, the authority
13 authorize us or to conduct your own inquiry into
14 any factual issues posed. My point was, I don't
15 think Nevada's brief on its face actually rebuts
16 our case, prima fascia or otherwise.

17 JUDGE KARLIN: I understand. You first
18 assert that you think you have won on the facts and
19 the law; and secondly, if there are factual issues,
20 there are ways to address them.

21 MR. SHEBELSKIE: Absolutely, Your Honor, and
22 I believe this argument in our brief illuminates
23 several topics, inquiry on those.

24 JUDGE KARLIN: And the main part of your

Deleted: .

Deleted: and

1 position with regard to DOE Exhibit H is their
2 failure to provide supporting and non-supporting
3 information?

4 MR. SHEBELSKIE: Correct.

5 JUDGE KARLIN: Okay.

6 MR. SHEBELSKIE: Unless there are some
7 other questions --

8 JUDGE MOORE: Would you agree that the
9 situation with which this Board faced in 2004 on
10 June 30th, when Nevada -- when you certified and
11 Nevada filed a motion to strike was a world apart
12 from the situation we face now?

13 MR. SHEBELSKIE: A world apart?

14 JUDGE MOORE: Yes. Let me recall to you
15 what that situation was.

16 One, you certified on June 30th, with no
17 prior notice that were about to do it. At that
18 time you had few, if any, documents on the LSN
19 available via the LSN. You had a parallel system
20 on which you had all the documents that was on a
21 public website that was immediately taken down on
22 June 30th for some four, five, six days thereafter,
23 so it was not available publicly.

24 We didn't even know and had no way of

1 knowing in those circumstances how many documents
2 DOE even had certified to, because there was no LSN
3 to turn to and even turn on the switch and look.
4 My recollection was we were faced with an entirely
5 different situation than we are faced with today,
6 four years later, with the certifications that have
7 come in and the motions to strike.

8 What am I missing in my recollection?

9 MR. SHEBELSKIE: The issues, the
10 immediate issues before the Board in the 2004
11 motion to strike are different from the issues
12 here, in certain respects for sure. But, actually
13 when you look at the Board's opinion that the issue
14 on 2004, a lot of that was predicated on
15 information developed as a result of the
16 interrogatories the Board asked us.
17 Then Nevada's -- I had occasion to review
18 Nevada's motion to strike from 2004 when we were
19 putting this together, and it was pretty plain
20 vanilla and simply saying that DOE had represented
21 there was going to be 3.5 million documents in its
22 collection, now there is only -- depending on how
23 you look at it -- only 1 million.
24 Now, they were claiming that there were a

1 lot of privileged documents -- the privileged issue
2 was appearing on its face. But many of the items
3 and the record that was developed and that the
4 Board then cited and relied on came as a result of
5 the queries to us and not presented in Nevada's
6 motion.

7 JUDGE MOORE: When you raised the
8 privilege, my recollection is there was information
9 that you were claiming 150,000 documents were
10 privileged or -- yet there is not one bibliographic
11 header on a system that no one had any availability
12 to, because yours was -- your parallel system wasn't
available

Deleted:

Deleted: o

13 on the day that you filed the motion, and there was
14 not anything on the LSN.

15 MR. SHEBELSKIE: Well, I think the issue -- we had -- For
the documents that

16 had been filed on the LSN, a high percentage,
17 upwards of 50 percent, I believe the number was,
18 were bibliographic header only, subject to a claim
19 of privilege.

20 There was a second issue that there were
21 additional documents not yet crawled that were on
22 our separate server. Yes, those are not the issues
23 with -- we are not claiming they had privileged

24 documents, too many privileged documents or that

1 they had not crawled over the documents they tend
 2 to make available. So that is a sort of apples and
 3 oranges.

4 But fundamentally, I think, if we are
 5 looking at a situation, what you have with their
 6 motion was they had -- all they knew about our
 7 production was from what they could see, what was
 8 on the LSN or not on the LSN and what we had
 9 publicly said we might be doing. To that extent,
 10 it is a parallel situation.

11 All we can do is to say here is what they
 12 have said, they were going to have 100,000
 13 documents, here is what they put on the LSN, less
 14 than five percent of that, with major voids in
 15 terms of categories of documents where they have
 16 said already, taking the position before the
 17 Commission that they are not going to be able to
 18 know what their reliance material is, and it raises
 19 the scenario that they haven't made a good-faith
 20 effort. That's the same really, as in --

21 JUDGE MOORE: If we
 22 granted --

23 MR. SHEBELSKIE: 2004.

24 JUDGE MOORE: I think that's been made

Deleted:

Deleted: o

Deleted: That's to say
 really,

Deleted: i

1 for discovery; assume hypothetically you had asked
 2 us for discovery, and we say we have a factual
 3 dispute, we have no way to get to the root of it,
 4 what would you do factually and how long would it
 5 take you to do it with discovery to be able to make
 6 a factual case?

7 MR. SHEBELSKIE: Right. Well, I can answer the
 8 second question.

9 JUDGE MOORE: I'm sorry?

10 MR. SHEBELSKIE: I can answer the second
 11 question very immediately, because we can move, act
 12 immediately, as long as the Board enjoins both
 13 sides to put them on a short leash to complete any
 14 kind of factual development. I mean, we can do it
 15 within 30 days, as long as Nevada provides timely
 16 responses.

Deleted: to

Deleted: respond.

Deleted: Y

17 JUDGE MOORE: Well, now, you said earlier, I
 18 believe, that you didn't think there was any
 19 authority to have discovery or ask for discovery --

20 MR. SHEBELSKIE: No. We did not have any
 21 means prior to Nevada's certification to
 22 independently conduct discovery --

23 JUDGE MOORE: Immediately upon
 24 certification, did you?

1 MR. SHEBELSKIE: No. I don't think
2 without leave of this court --

3 JUDGE MOORE: That's 2.004.

4 MR. SHEBELSKIE: 2.1 --

5 JUDGE MOORE: I'm sorry, 2.1004?

6 MR. SHEBELSKIE: Let me grab the
7 regulation.

8 In the pre-license application, 2.1004,
9 Amendments and Additions?

10 JUDGE MOORE: Isn't that exactly this,
11 situation? If there is not something there that
12 you think should be there, you make a request for
13 it?

14 MR. SHEBELSKIE: Well, we movedd to strike
15 saying they had not made documentary material
16 available.

17 JUDGE MOORE: But if you had predicated
18 that motion to strike with requests under 2.1004,
19 would that not have put you in a much better
20 position?

21 MR. SHEBELSKIE: No, because I think this
22 regulation deals with - if you know a specific
23 documents that you want to ask for, you can move to
24 compel for.

Deleted: e

1 JUDGE MOORE: You could have said every
2 document in the collection that contains a
3 contention.

4 MR. SHEBELSKIE: No, no; because the only
5 obligation to -- Nevada's obligation in the
6 pre-license phase is to make their documentary
7 material available. We don't have any means under
8 this regulation or any other regulation to say, in
9 addition to your documentary material, we want to
10 you put on the LSN the following other kinds of
11 documents.

12 And so, since their obligation, and their
13 only obligation is to make documentary material
14 available, we don't have to ask for them to make
15 their documentary material available. They are
16 required to have done it 90 days after our
17 certification.

18 And if they didn't come forward with all
19 their documentary material based on what we think
20 is an improper legal standard, then we don't have
21 to make specific requests for what's missing,
22 because how would we know, Judge Karlin's point.
23 Our relief appropriately is to say, since
24 you have programmatically or categorically under

1 produced your documents, you have not met your
2 standard, and you need to go back and redo it.

3 JUDGE MOORE: 2.1018 is inapplicable
4 under the pre-license application phase?

5 MR. SHEBELSKIE: Parts of it, I believe,
6 are. Certainly, for example, depositions. I don't
7 believe we can conduct depositions as a matter of

8 right, or unilaterally as it were. I think that the means
9 available to us are requests for informal

10 discovery, a formal request for information. And
11 again, we had our meet and confer, and they said they
aren't providing us with --

12 JUDGE MOORE: Request for admissions.

13 MR. SHEBELSKIE: Request for admissions
14 potentially.

15 JUDGE MOORE: So there are discovery
16 available to you that you didn't pursue?

17 MR. SHEBELSKIE: And even if we had served a
18 request for admission, we would not have had a
19 response in time to file our motion to strike. And
20 again, our motion to strike --

21 JUDGE MOORE: Could you not have filed
22 for relief and sought an extension of time so that
23 you could have done this?

24 MR. SHEBELSKIE: Well, theoretically.

Deleted: are

Deleted: l

Deleted: of

Deleted: is

Deleted: E

1 But we believe we actually had a basis now to
2 strike.

Deleted: ve

3 JUDGE KARLIN: Well, let me just see if this analogy
4 works. It seems to me that back in 2004 when
5 Nevada was complaining that you had not made all
6 your documentary material available, the tables
7 were turned, and I think DOE suggested, well, if
8 they want some specific information, they can move
9 to compel, they can file a request, they can do all
10 these sort of things, and that will solve -- will
supplement; we 'll

Deleted: L

11 answer them.

Deleted: will

12 And we said in our decision that's not
13 sufficient because that will undermine the time
14 frame that's set forth, and later supplementation
15 or later disputes does not obviate the initial
16 failure to make documentary material available.
17 MR. SHEBELSKIE: Absolutely. Absolutely.
18 JUDGE KARLIN: You had ten days to file
19 your motion to strike and you did so. You did the
20 same thing they did, and I think the response is
21 the same, well, your time frame is not going to be
22 bogged down by you having to make a request for
23 every one of the thousands of documents that don't
24 seem to be there.

1 But let me switch to another subject.

2 What do you need those documents for?

3 The purpose of producing documentary material
4 is so the interveners can formulate
5 contentions. You are not going to formulate
6 contentions. So what do you need these
7 documents for?

8 MR. SHEBELSKIE: No, Your Honor. The
9 document production obligations under Subpart J in
10 the pre-license phase are the substitute for all
11 the parties' document discovery and that includes
12 DOE's document discovery rights. And we certainly
13 have the right to know in order to defend our
14 application what the information, supporting
15 information Nevada intends to rely on against us as
16 well as what non-supporting information they have
17 acquired, developed or in their possession that
18 undermines what they intend to cite and rely on.
19 Just like if they are going to have experts testify
20 or their experts have developed work product, now, we
21 are entitled to know it.

Deleted: suddenly

22 JUDGE KARLIN: Let me ask another
23 question. You're asking for a motion to strike.
24 What if we granted the motion to strike, what

1 relief are you asking for? What consequence would
2 it occur?

3 For example, can a party who has failed
4 to make its own documentary material available
5 attack a party who has made its documentary
6 material? Can Nevada file motions to compel? Can
7 Nevada file other motions if we have stricken
8 Nevada's motion -- initial certification?

9 MR. SHEBELSKIE: Until they recertify?

10 JUDGE KARLIN: Until they recertify.

11 What's the consequence? What would the consequence
12 be if we granted this? Nothing?

13 MR. SHEBELSKIE: No, I think the

14 consequence is until they -- they could not file motions to
15 compel against us, as an example, until they
16 recertify.

17 JUDGE MOORE: How much time do they have
18 to recertify?

Deleted: KARLIN

19 MR. SHEBELSKIE: I think that they can

20 certify even during the contention phase. I mean,
21 2.1012 (b), I think, even contemplates that scenario.

Deleted: B

22 And it is up to them when they recertified, because
23 they would be in control of that in terms of making
24 their production. Presumably they could move --

1 JUDGE MOORE: Would it preclude them from
2 filing contentions?

3 MR. SHEBELSKIE: If they never
4 recertified?

5 JUDGE MOORE: Let's, just for the sake of
6 argument, say that ~~-- let's see, your certification~~
7 was stricken roughly August of 2004, and you
8 recertified in October of 2007, two and-a-half
9 years. If they took two and-a-half years to
10 recertify their document collection, would that be
11 seasonably done?

Deleted: --

Deleted: say

Deleted: that

12 MR. SHEBELSKIE: I don't think that there
13 is any time limit. They could take 30 days, they
14 could take two years as they saw appropriate. But
15 1012 ~~(b),~~ would provide that until they recertify, they
16 couldn't file contentions.

Deleted: B

17 JUDGE MOORE: So you say there's a
18 penalty, they couldn't file --

19 MR. SHEBELSKIE: I think the regulations
20 ~~says,~~ something to the effect, a party has to take
21 the proceeding as they find it when they
22 recertified. So it would be up to them.

Deleted: id

23 Again, as a practical matter, is it going
24 to take them that long? They say they have

1 preserved everything, they have collected
 2 everything. I don't think they will come up here
 3 and tell you it will take them two and-a-half years
 4 to do this, to get their production in order.

Deleted: --

5 JUDGE MOORE: Now, let's assume one final
 6 question: That it's stricken, they do exactly what
 7 you just said, they go re-look through it, they
 8 apply their standards, and they come back with the
 9 same thing. And this time, they have six
 10 affidavits from all of their area managers or
 11 whatever they call them that we've done it all and
 12 this is -- what you see is what you get; that's all
 13 there is. What happens?

Deleted: they

14 MR. SHEBELSKIE: That can't be the case,
 15 because -- what their standard -- or you would say, Nevada
 if you're

Deleted: --

Deleted: then,

16 representing --

17 JUDGE MOORE: Is this a situation of a dog chasing its tail.

Deleted: --

18 MR. SHEBELSKIE: If their position then
 19 would be we have re-looked under the right legal
 20 standard, this is everything, then they would have
 21 to be held to that representation later in the
 22 proceeding. And they can't come forward -- and
 23 their experts can't come forward and use in the
 24 proceeding later information analyses that they

1 have developed prior to 2008, if it had not been
 2 made available on their certification. What they're trying

--

3 It seems to us now what they are trying
 4 to gain now, is they are saying, we have done all
 5 of this work, yes, we have been able to develop
 6 2,000 contentions, but we don't have to produce it,
 7 because they are not final contentions, as opposed
 8 to saying -- but if they come and say we have now
 9 produced everything our experts have ever done,
 10 including all the emails, et cetera --

11 JUDGE MOORE: -- that as far as the filing of
 12 contentions and answers to contentions, that this
 13 LSN document production has nothing to do with your
 14 ability to file answers?

15 MR. SHEBELSKIE: No. Our ability to file answers --

16 JUDGE MOORE: How will it in any way,
 17 shape or form, any of this material affect your
 18 ability to answer contentions?

19 MR. SHEBELSKIE: Well --

20 JUDGE MOORE: They need to provide support
 21 to file contentions. There is no such requirement
 22 in your answer challenging that contention.

23 MR. SHEBELSKIE: Well, until we see their non
 24 supporting information, even their supporting

Deleted: --

Deleted: A

Deleted: U

1 information, I don't know if I can answer that --

2 JUDGE MOORE: All that will do is present

3 a factual dispute which can't be taken into account

4 on the admission of contentions.

5 MR. SHEBELSKIE: No, Your Honor. We are

6 entitled to conduct discovery. This is our means --

7 opportunity -- the sole means allowed to us for document

discovery

8 for both supporting and non-supporting information.

9 We may use that information, depending upon what it

10 is, to help oppose their contentions.

11 Sometimes as a matter of fact,

12 sometime as a matter of law. I don't know what it

13 is until we see the information.

14 JUDGE MOORE: If it is a matter -- I

15 can't possibly see what they need to put up there

16 under the definition of documentary material that

17 would be -- present a matter of law that would

18 allow you to oppose a contention, so it is strictly

19 factual.

20 MR. SHEBELSKIE: All right. Fair enough.

21 JUDGE MOORE: And you have indicated non

22 supporting, but as long as their affidavit -- their

23 contentions are supported, the fact that there is

24 other outstanding non-supporting information, we

Deleted: --

Deleted: there i

1 can't resolve that in the admission of contentions.

2 MR. SHEBELSKIE: Well, at some time in
3 the proceeding if there is a factual dispute --

4 JUDGE MOORE: Downstream you have access
5 to all of this material under 1018, do you not?

Deleted: information

6 MR. SHEBELSKIE: Well, it remains unclear
7 because there is no opp -- because 1018 does not provide
for request for

8 production of documents. Moreover, the Commission
9 has specified --

10 JUDGE MOORE: How many depositions have
11 you taken, Mr. Shebelskie, and how many requests in
12 setting up that deposition you told them to bring,
13 they had better bring all these documents?

14 MR. SHEBELSKIE: The point, Your Honor,
15 under the regulations we are not bound to have to
16 wait until that late date in the proceedings.

17 JUDGE MOORE: One other question. I
18 re-read a lot of the legislative, regulatory
19 history going back to '89. I found three things in
20 the regulatory history and the purpose for the LSN
21 and its predecessor, the LSS.

22 One was to permit, as Judge Karlin just
23 mentioned, the early and formulation of contentions
24 that would speed the process; two, that there are

1 other, under the Waste Policy Act, requirements for
2 the involvement of affected units of local
3 government in interacting with DOE, and it would be
4 a mechanism by which they would be kept up to
5 speed, in theory, on what DOE was doing; and third,
6 it would allow the staff with all this material on
7 the LSS and the LSN to keep track of what DOE was
8 doing.

9 Now, I recognize that was the projection
10 of what the fond hope was that all this would do,
11 but those are the only three things I could
12 identify in all that legislative history that was
13 the purpose to be served by the LSN and the LSS,
14 its predecessor.

15 If that is the case, the question of
16 where is your prejudice comes to the fore?

17 MR. SHEBELSKIE: Well, there are also
18 statements, if I recall, in that regulatory history
19 that talk about the pre-application certification
20 process and the production on the LSN as the
21 substitute for traditional discovery. And that
22 cuts both ways, not only for Nevada against DOE,
23 but DOE against Nevada, as well as the staff
24 against Nevada or other parties against Nevada.

1 So it is a document production for the
2 benefit not only of DOE but for all other
3 participants. And if that were true what you are
4 positing, Your Honor, were true, then the Commission would
not

5 put in an obligation in Subpart J for Nevada and
6 all other potential participants to make their own
7 certifications and make their own document
8 production of documentary material in 90 days.

9 I think on the face of the regulation as
10 a substitute for traditional discovery and intent,
11 it is mutual, it was intended to be mutual and must
12 be applied mutually in good faith.

13 I know I have exceeded my 45 minutes.

14 JUDGE MOORE: Mr. Fitzpatrick, I believe
15 you're up. Before you start, why don't we take a
16 ten-minute recess. We will reconvene at 10:20.

17 (Short break taken)

18 JUDGE MOORE: Please be seated.

19 Mr. Shebelskie, you may be in luck.

20 There may be a waiver involved here.

21 Mr. Fitzpatrick, I didn't think you would
22 allow us off that easily.

23 MR. FITZPATRICK: May it please the

24 Court: What I would like to do is first state that

1 Nevada acted in total good faith in creating its
2 LSN database. I intend to tell you what the
3 Commission anticipated we should do, and then I'm
4 going to tell you what Nevada did. And I would
5 like to throw in just as an aside, something that
6 Judge Rosenthal, I think, brought up first.
7 We aren't simply faced with a factual
8 issue where DOE came in, no evidence, no
9 declaration, and just speculation about what was or
10 wasn't in Nevada's database. We responded with
11 proof and declarations which set out what we did,
12 what we have and have not on our LSN database, and
13 a lengthy deposition of Mr. Thorne explaining the
14 why exactly.
15 He started out that he spent hundreds of
16 hours as the head of the coordinator of the Nevada
17 team attempting to review, analyze and understand
18 what DOE has placed on the LSN, and he says what is
19 available now has not enable, me or the other
20 experts with who I worked to frame focus or
21 meaningful contentions in this proceedings.
22 That's just the beginning. He goes page
23 after page of explaining exactly why. But -- and
24 we saw an e-mail thrown up on the screen from

Deleted: up

Deleted: d

1 Professor Barkatt. It was a 2001 e-mail.
2 Now, it referred in there to some test he
3 did. And let's make believe he did some test.
4 Professor Barkatt did not include, apparently -- I
5 mean, I don't know, this stuff was put up
6 yesterday, talk about ten days notice. But make
7 believe there was a test and make believe the test
8 results are not on our LSN.

9 Well, he is writing about it in 2001,
10 seven years ago. And so that would tell me that he
11 concluded that the information in the test result
12 is something that he had concluded there is no way
13 he's going to rely upon it in forming opinions in
14 this proceeding. There is nothing vicious or
15 malicious about -- if the document referred to
16 seven years ago is not on the LSN, there is nothing
17 unusual about why it's not. If it's not documentary
material, it's not --

18 JUDGE ROSENTHAL: Mr. Fitzpatrick, do you
19 dispute that there is an issue of fact that has
20 been raised by the DOE motion? And if there is an
21 issue of fact, I would ask you, as I asked Mr.
22 Shebelskie, as to how we should address it?

23 Now, Judge Karlin has suggested one
24 procedure. I don't know whether that's -- what you

Deleted: i11

Deleted: And

1 would find acceptable. But it does seem to me that
2 when we get to the bottom here, that DOE has
3 presented a prima fascia case. You have rebutted
4 it. And that is a traditional situation where
5 there is a factual issue that requires resolution
6 before a motion such as this is finally acted upon.

7 MR. FITZPATRICK: There 's two things
8 wrong with that formulation, Your Honor.
9 Number one, there is not a fact issue
10 created by simple, arguments of counsel are not
11 evidence. There is no evidence supporting a
12 motion. And when they say things in their motion
13 such as Nevada has had a world class team of
14 experts, 25 experts working for a quarter of a
15 century, spending several tens of millions of
16 dollars and so they should have these documents,
17 those are arguments of counsel. And they may not
18 be intentionally untrue, but they are untrue.
19 And our proof and our evidence shows that
20 we started engaging the licensing experts in 2003,
21 and that the most busy one, Dr. Thorne, it's in our
22 proof, spent 17 hours a month between then and now
23 working on this proceeding.
24 We have not had access to the DOE

Deleted: are

1 documents. DOE certified in 2004 and from 2004
2 until March of 2007, they sent documents over and
3 over and over to Mr. Graser under an agreement that
4 they could not be made public, they could not be
5 shown to Nevada. And so, you know, it is disingenuous
6 for them to said we had a world class team of
7 experts working and working when they hid the
8 documents until last summer when they finally
9 released them and issued a self-serving statement
10 that we're doing this to help the parties --

Deleted: es

11 JUDGE MOORE: Mr. Fitzpatrick, let's
12 again observe the glass house admonition. There is
13 a lot of us in this proceeding that appear to be
14 living in glass houses, and there is an awful lot
15 of hard objects being thrown around. So, let's try
16 to steer clear of motives. Let's try to keep it to
17 fact.

18 MR. FITZPATRICK: Yes, sir. And the only
19 facts of record in this case are the facts that
20 Nevada has made of record by competent evidence.

21 JUDGE KARLIN: Let me ask you a factual
22 question. I think you were saying that Dr. Thorne
23 has indicated that he has not been able to
24 formulate meaningful contentions or something like

1 that.

2 Let me just go to your brief, if you
3 would, look at it on page 18. Do you have that?

4 MR. FITZPATRICK: Yes, Your Honor.

5 JUDGE KARLIN: Now, in the -- there's a section
6 that's entitled "Estimate about Contentions";
7 right, you with me? Okay. And if you will
8 remember, and I think you recite here in your brief
9 that DOE in its motion to strike made reference to
10 a statement by Mr. Loux -- is that how you
11 pronounce his --

12 MR. FITZPATRICK: Loux.

13 JUDGE KARLIN: Loux. I'm sorry. A
14 statement by Mr. Loux before the Nevada legislature
15 that was quoted in some newspaper that was provided
16 as an exhibit that the Nevada team had drafted
17 thousands of contentions. All right.

18 Now, here's the statement you make in
19 your brief, page 18 in about the middle of the
20 page, quote: Assuming DOE's purported quotation of
21 Mr. Loux in its motion was accurate, which Nevada
22 does not concede."

23 Now, did you ask Mr. Loux whether he had
24 said before the legislature we have formulated and

Deleted: re

1 drafted thousands of contentions?

2 MR. FITZPATRICK: Of course. Yes, sir.

3 JUDGE KARLIN: And what did Mr. Loux say?

4 MR. FITZPATRICK: He said he -- it was
5 unsworn testimony, not prepared. He did not
6 remember exactly what he said, but that his
7 recollection was that he said we are working on
8 contention and we have already drafted a large
9 number.

10 JUDGE KARLIN: So he denied that he had
11 said he had formulated thousands of contentions,
12 drafted thousands of contentions?

13 MR. FITZPATRICK: No, he didn't deny
14 that.

15 JUDGE KARLIN: So, you say you don't
16 concede, but why don't you tell us what the facts
17 you have --

18 MR. FITZPATRICK: We don't concede it
19 because DOE dropped the footnote below that where
20 it said that and said we don't have the transcript
21 of what he claimed he said. I guess that had a
22 witness there. The newspaper said something
23 different and here's what the newspaper said.

24 JUDGE KARLIN: So there -- So, did Mr. Loux deny --

Deleted: --

1 MR. FITZPATRICK: There was not an
2 accurate record until two days ago of what he said.

3 JUDGE KARLIN: Were you there when he
4 said this?

5 MR. FITZPATRICK: No, I was not.

6 JUDGE KARLIN: Did Mr. Loux deny saying
7 he had said something about thousands of
8 contentions?

9 MR. FITZPATRICK: No, he didn't.

10 JUDGE KARLIN: So, you asked him, and he
11 didn't deny that --

Deleted: I'm asking you

12 MR. FITZPATRICK: He didn't deny it -- he
13 said something about 2,000 contentions.

14 JUDGE KARLIN: I'm just trying to get the
15 facts. Let's go to the Exhibit X of DOE's, which
16 is the transcript by this court reporter -- I don't
17 know if it is the official transcript, but on page
18 7 -- pull that up, please.

19 And the highlighted section as shown on the
20 screen is line, I guess, 11 of this transcript and
21 where Mr. Loux transcribed as saying we currently
22 probably have in the neighborhood drafted a couple
23 thousand contentions, if you would, many more to
24 come.

Deleted: i11

1 Do you concede that that is what he said?

2 MR. FITZPATRICK: Apparently. It's in
3 the record that was produced yesterday. Yes.

4 JUDGE KARLIN: So Mr. Loux is accurately
5 quoted as saying that you have drafted thousands of
6 contentions?

7 MR. FITZPATRICK: Yes.

8 JUDGE KARLIN: Okay, thank you.

9 MR. FITZPATRICK: Mr. Loux is a layman.
10 Mr. Loux was not speaking under oath. Mr. Loux
11 apparently spoke -- I wouldn't go along --

Deleted: --

12 JUDGE KARLIN: Isn't Mr. Loux a member of
13 your team?

14 MR. FITZPATRICK: Pardon me?

15 JUDGE KARLIN: Isn't Mr. Loux a member of
16 Nevada's team?

17 MR. FITZPATRICK: Yes, Your Honor.

18 JUDGE KARLIN: What is his position on
19 Nevada's team?

20 MR. FITZPATRICK: He is an official with
21 the State. He does not have an official title with
22 our team.

23 JUDGE KARLIN: Is he speaking to the
24 legislature of Nevada?

1 MR. FITZPATRICK: Yes.

2 JUDGE KARLIN: So he probably was trying

3 to be accurate?

4 MR. FITZPATRICK: Yes, no question -- no question about

5 it.

6 JUDGE KARLIN: So, Nevada --

7 MR. FITZPATRICK: Mr. Loux has probably

8 never seen an official contention as they end up

9 being filed with the NRC. And without questioning

10 about it, I'm quite sure when he used that in an

11 imprecise way, he didn't even imply that there were

12 somehow thousands of full blown contentions in --

13 JUDGE KARLIN: No, he didn't say -- you,

14 said in your declaration, I think, you said we do

15 not have a single final contention.

16 MR. FITZPATRICK: Or a single

17 circulated --

18 JUDGE KARLIN: Or a single circulated

19 draft contention. But all Mr. Loux is saying is

20 you had thousands of draft contentions?.

21 MR. FITZPATRICK: We are talking about

22 two different things, but, yes.

23 JUDGE KARLIN: Okay. If I may, could --

24 JUDGE ROSENTHAL: Well, I would like you

Deleted: i

Deleted: --

Deleted: it

Deleted: he

Deleted: h

Deleted: --

Deleted: . Y

1 to get back to the point, assume for the sake of
2 our discussion that this Board or the majority of
3 this Board were to conclude that at bottom here are
4 factual issues, that what DOE has presented makes
5 out a prima fascia case, which you have adequately
6 challenged, how then, in your view, should this
7 Board proceed in the consideration of the DOE
8 motion?

9 I grant you that you may think that DOE
10 has not made out a prima fascia case, but I'm
11 asking you to assume for discussion that we can
12 conclude otherwise. How then should we proceed,
13 the way that Judge Karlin suggested or some other
14 way?

15 MR. FITZPATRICK: My view of how you
16 should proceed is that a party has a duty to
17 prepare and file a motion, if it chooses to do so,
18 and to take those actions it deems necessary to secure
19 the necessary support for its motion. That's what
20 a party has to do.

21 DOE had a period of ten days after our
22 certification in January, until January 27th, to
23 prepare a motion and to take whatever steps it
24 chose to ask for discovery, to seek a delay of the

1 requirement to file its motion or to supplement
2 ~~it motion for discovery, perhaps, but it had the~~
3 ability and the means, as any attorneys do, to take
4 steps to make sure that when it filed a motion, it
5 was a motion that compelling and should succeed.

Deleted: this

6 And so the answer is, the motion should
7 be denied because the motion does not contain --
8 JUDGE ROSENTHAL: Let's assume that we
9 don't accept that position, that we decide that
10 there is indeed a factual issue that is
11 appropriately before us. How then do we deal with
12 it?

13 MR. FITZPATRICK: If you decide there is
14 factual issue before you, but one side has not
15 presented the facts in a forum, I guess you could
16 take steps that were discussed before, such as
17 posing queries to be answered either under oath or
18 not by Nevada or other steps to allow the facts to
19 be obtained which should have been obtained
20 earlier.

21 JUDGE MOORE: How does that comport with
22 the regulations that place on the Movant, the
23 burden?

24 MR. FITZPATRICK: As I said, the Movant

1 had the requirement, if it was going to make a
2 motion, to take the steps necessary to support its
3 motion.

4 We were in the same boat with this a few
5 months ago. We had exactly ten days to challenge a
6 DOE motion. And we forwent different grounds that
7 may well have been raised.

8 Ms. Treichel, speaking for another party,
9 brought one up, and it was back of the hand because
10 she didn't have statements where she reviewed the
11 3.5 million documents and could make
12 generalizations about it and so on. She was
13 unskilled but -- in other words, a party assesses
14 the time available to it to make a motion and takes
15 the steps necessary.

16 We chose to focus on this and not that.

17 DOE chose to do what it chose to do.

18 JUDGE MOORE: Is the scheme of the
19 regulation self-policing in the sense that if there
20 is documentary material that is not placed on by a
21 party or potential party but should have been, that
22 that material cannot subsequently be relied upon by
23 that party for any purpose downstream?

24 MR. FITZPATRICK: I think that's

Deleted: a

1 certainly within the discretion of the PAPO Board
2 here and the ASLB later. As with any party in
3 civil litigation where there is any sort of a
4 deadline for producing expert reports and exhibit
5 lists and that's not met, I think this would be an
6 equivalent.

7 JUDGE MOORE: If that's the case, then
8 there's never -- and assume that's the scheme,
9 there would not be any prejudice to any other
10 party; is that correct, that can't later be used?

11 MR. FITZPATRICK: I think in fairness, it
12 is a little more complicated question, because it
13 might be different for the different parties.

14 If DOE certified in the LSN database with
15 nothing on it, arguably, there would be a problem.
16 But we would be hard pressed to say later on that
17 they couldn't use anything. But --

18 JUDGE KARLIN: Let me follow up on that.
19 If, for example, a potential party had developed
20 information that was -- significantly undermined
21 some of their contentions, and they decided, well,
22 we are just not going to make it available because
23 we are not going to rely on it, would the
24 self-policing mechanism that Judge Moore just

1 posited work?

2 I think not, because the other parties
3 would be deprived of the opportunity to see that
4 material and to probe and challenge the Intervener
5 who had presenting a position that -- which that
6 Intervener had undermining non-supporting
7 information. Would you agree?

Deleted: ed

8 MR. FITZPATRICK: I agree that it is true
9 of this case and in every civil suit that -- I
10 mean, where parties ask Interrogatories or request
11 for production, if people deep six the damaging
12 documents. I mean, there is no way a party may
13 learn that, it's true. And it is a terrible thing,
14 because you are depending -- I mean, it is not a
15 terrible thing to depend on the integrity of the
16 attorneys representing the parties. You certainly
17 should be able to do that.

18 But there's nothing to prevent a party
19 from, in civil litigation or elsewhere, from just
20 shredding something that's damaging to them.

Deleted: it is

Deleted: ort

Deleted: I

21 JUDGE KARLIN: Well, if I may, I would like to
22 ask you some questions about your call memos at
23 this point.

24 MR. FITZPATRICK: Can I -- Your Honor, I led in by

1 saying I would like to tell you what the NRC asked
2 us to do and what we did. And in what we did we
3 will go into that. Can I do that?

4 JUDGE KARLIN: I think this would be more
5 helpful to us, certainly to me. And it sort of
6 goes to the point you were just making.
7 No one, I think, is suggesting that
8 anyone attempted to deep six anything. And I don't
9 see that in DOE's motion. Nor do I even see them
10 alleging that you did anything in bad faith, or
11 that anyone who was administering this necessarily
12 acted in bad faith. Those words were not used.

13 MR. FITZPATRICK: Your Honor, those words
14 specifically were used 24 times in their motion,
15 "bad faith."

16 JUDGE KARLIN: All right. Can you cite
17 me some of those?

18 MR. FITZPATRICK: Sure.

19 JUDGE KARLIN: I see where there was a
20 lack -- there might have been a failure to
21 provide -- to meet the good faith, the substantial
22 compliance standard, but -- specifically where they
23 accused you of bad faith or Nevada?

24 MR. FITZPATRICK: Nevada.

1 JUDGE KARLIN: Okay.

2 MR. FITZPATRICK: Page one: "Nevada has
3 not made a good faith effort to make available its
4 documentary material."

5 JUDGE KARLIN: Okay. Let's stop right
6 there. To say someone has not made a good faith
7 effort to produce all documentary material is not
8 the same as to say they acted in bad faith. Any
9 lawyer worth a salt would know that.

10 Let me ask you to find the words, the
11 literal words "bad faith"?
12 Maybe we could move on and your
13 co-counsel could review the brief -- if you think
14 your paralegal can find that later, great. But I
15 posit those word were not used in any of DOE's
16 motion to strike, "bad faith".

17 MR. FITZPATRICK: I believe they were,
18 Your Honor.

19 JUDGE KARLIN: Okay. I would ask you to
20 ask your colleague to find those words before your
21 presentation is over with. So let's move on. I
22 don't think DOE has said that.

23 But let's just go to your call memo. I
24 would refer you to DOE Exhibit H.

1 Can we pull that up, Mr. Wielkie.
2 Can we get it any bigger on the screen
3 and eliminate the side bar material? I'm sorry, Mr.
Cutchin is doing this.

4 Now, can you identify that document for
5 us, Mr. Fitzpatrick?
6 MR. FITZPATRICK: Yes. Mr. Egan's
7 June 5th, 2007 memorandum to the Nevada licensing
8 team regarding LSN compliance.

9 JUDGE KARLIN: Okay. And is that the
10 same as your Exhibit 18?

11 MR. FITZPATRICK: Yes, Your Honor.

12 JUDGE KARLIN: And do you agree that that
13 is a fair and accurate copy of your memorandum?

14 MR. FITZPATRICK: I believe so, Your Honor.

Deleted: Yes

15 JUDGE KARLIN: What's the title of that
16 memorandum? Could you read the "re"?

17 MR. FITZPATRICK: "Call memo, important
18 instructions for your compliance with LSN
19 regulations."

Deleted: Paul,

20 JUDGE KARLIN: Okay. Great.
21 Now, if you can go to the second page of
22 that memorandum, please.
23 Can we eliminate the side bar on that,
24 Mr. Cutchin? Why don't we go back to a full page

1 as best we can see it. Okay. I guess that's part
2 of the page, but that would be adequate.

3 I would refer you to the second numbered
4 paragraph. There you --, the guideline indicates that
5 there are three practical tests of LSN worthiness,
6 and all three of which must apply or else the
7 document in question may be omitted from the LSN.

8 So is that correct that if it doesn't
9 meet all three tests, you omitted it, it was
10 omitted?

11 MR. FITZPATRICK: Correct, Your Honor.

12 JUDGE KARLIN: And again in the following
13 full paragraph unnumbered, you again, say,
14 production will, quote, only -- only is
15 highlighted -- be required to be sent to Susan
16 Lynch for inclusion in the LSN if they first pass
17 all three -- and that's underlined or
18 highlighted -- of the tests. Closed quote.
19 So those 3 tests you posit as important
20 instructions to all of your people?

21 MR. FITZPATRICK: Yes, sir.

22 JUDGE KARLIN: Let's go to page 4 of that
23 memorandum, please, and the bottom of that page.
24 Now, this indicates that you -- the

Deleted: ,

Deleted: this,

1 distribution list, can you tell me those are
2 the people to whom those important instructions
3 were distributed; right?

4 MR. FITZPATRICK: Apparently so.

5 JUDGE KARLIN: Well, were they or were
6 they not?

7 MR. FITZPATRICK: That's the purpose of
8 the distribution of this.

9 JUDGE KARLIN: Okay. And did all of the people
10 in that distribution list submit a certification,
11 as is shown in the Appendix D of your memo
12 regarding their documentary material or lack
13 thereof?

14 MR. FITZPATRICK: I know an awful lot
15 came that did not come to me. It came to
16 Ms. Lynch, and I kept monitoring whether the people
17 were responding and urged her to keep after them.

18 JUDGE KARLIN: So you don't know?

19 MR. FITZPATRICK: So, I can't swear whether
20 100 percent of them --

21 JUDGE KARLIN: If someone didn't respond,
22 did anybody follow-up?

23 MR. FITZPATRICK: Right, Ms. Lynch
24 followed up either first by e-mail and then by

1 telephone call.

2 JUDGE KARLIN: So would it be possible

3 for us to file some factual questions that Ms.

4 Lynch could then answer?

5 MR. FITZPATRICK: Certainly, Your Honor.

6 JUDGE KARLIN: If you could then go to

7 Attachment B, your Exhibit B to Exhibit H, I guess

8 that's page 128, Mr. Cutchin. It starts with ~~-- and that --~~

9 let me back up.

10 Let's confirm for the record here, this

11 memo has four attachments to it, does it not,

12 Mr. Fitzpatrick?

13 MR. FITZPATRICK: That's correct, Your

14 Honor.

15 JUDGE KARLIN: And the first is Reg Guide

16 3.69, and the second is Exhibit B,

MR. FITZPATRICK: We just discussed.

JUDGE KARLIN: which is the

17 guidelines, which we are going to be focusing on

18 now. Exhibit C is a group of examples -- ten examples. Is

this

19 correct?

20 MR. FITZPATRICK: Yes.

21 JUDGE KARLIN: And Exhibit D is the

22 certification that you required and asked all of

Deleted: --

Formatted: Indent: First line: 0.5"

23 the distributees to send in to you?

24 MR. FITZPATRICK: Yes, Your Honor.

1 JUDGE KARLIN: Okay. So let's focus on the
2 guidelines, which is Exhibit B to Exhibit H of
3 DOE's exhibits, page 129 now.

4 And in the guidelines, you posit the
5 three tests, do you not?

6 MR. FITZPATRICK: Yes, Your Honor.

7 JUDGE KARLIN: And the second test, what
8 is that test?

9 MR. FITZPATRICK: I think it's whether
10 it's documentary material versus relevance.

11 JUDGE KARLIN: And the third test is?

12 MR. FITZPATRICK: Whether it's a final
13 document or preliminary --

14 JUDGE KARLIN: Now, the first test, which
15 one is that? This says, quote, test number one, is
16 the document or information relevant? What is the
17 regulatory statutory or whatever citations to
18 support that test?

19 MR. FITZPATRICK: The NRC regulation in
20 10 CFR 2 suggests that, in the definitions, I
21 believe, Section 2.101 suggests that Reg Guide 3.69
22 sets out a helpful outline of what are relevant
23 licensing topics. I think it might also mention
24 the license application review claim.

1 JUDGE KARLIN: Let's pull out that
2 regulation. Do you have your regulations?
3 Where do you find that relevance test in
4 2.1001? The definition of documentary material, I
5 presume you're talking about, right?

6 MR. FITZPATRICK: Yes, Your Honor. I
7 think it's in Section 3.

8 JUDGE KARLIN: Okay. And it says in
9 Section 3 -- well, let's go back. Regulation 10 CFR
10 2.1001, documentary material, Subpart 3: All
11 reports and studies prepared, et cetera, et cetera,
12 quote, relevant to both the licensed application
13 and the issues set forth in topical guidelines in
14 Reg Guide 3.69, close quote.
15 That's what you're referring to?

16 MR. FITZPATRICK: Yes, Your Honor.

17 JUDGE KARLIN: Now, I see that's a
18 criterion for DM2 -- documentary material category -- DM3
19 documentary category number 3, but how is it a test for all
of LSN

Deleted: number

20 worthy materials?

21 MR. FITZPATRICK: I think we concluded
22 that the License Application Review Plan and the
23 topical guidelines of 3.69 captured the subjects
24 that were going to be dealt with by DOE in its

1 license application. And so they were the topics
2 that individuals looking for relevant materials
3 should be looking for.

4 JUDGE KARLIN: So your memo says on page
5 one of the guidelines, quote, NRC's Regulatory
6 Guides 3.69 sets out a list of specific subjects
7 that effectively define a universe of what is
8 relevant to the Yucca Mountain license proceeding,
9 close quote. Right?

10 MR. FITZPATRICK: That's what it says,
11 yes, Your Honor.

12 JUDGE KARLIN: But where is that relevant
13 standard with regard to DM1?

14 MR. FITZPATRICK: I don't think there is
15 a relevant standard set out in either DM1 or 2.
16 So, we had to --

17 JUDGE KARLIN: There is 1 and 2. We will
18 get to that.

Mr. FITZPATRICK: All right, well --

But there is -- but beyond the
19 existence of that regulatory requirement in DM3,
20 that's your only citation for where that relevance
21 test, your initial relevance test came from?

22 MR. FITZPATRICK: In this particular
23 memo, yes.

Formatted: Indent: First line: 0.5"

1 comes from the definition of DM3?

2 MR. FITZPATRICK: Right. It is a broad
3 definition of licensing topics.

4 JUDGE KARLIN: Not all DM? Not all DM,
5 just DM3.

6 MR. FITZPATRICK: The definition in the
7 book applies to DM3. We believe that it was a fair
8 definition, a broad definition of licensing topics
9 that our experts should be on the lookout for.

10 JUDGE KARLIN: So you expanded this
11 relevance criterion to apply to all documentary
12 material, not just DM3?

13 MR. FITZPATRICK: Right. We had to give
14 them some guidance as to what was relevant,
15 otherwise they might be bringing in documents from
16 other lawsuits or something, and so we had to
17 formulate a description of what was relevant
18 material for their purposes of selecting documents.
19 And that's what we came up with.

20 JUDGE KARLIN: And so by adding an
21 additional test, test number one that is not in the
22 regulations, you might have narrowed the universe
23 of material that the people who got this memo would
24 give you?

1 MR. FITZPATRICK: We didn't think -- in
2 our exercise of good faith trying to come up with a
3 definition of what was relevant to put in the LSN,
4 no, we didn't think that we would be narrowing the
5 definition if we narrowed it to what was the
6 subject of this licensing proceeding.

7 JUDGE KARLIN: All right. Let's go to
8 the next test, test number two in your guidelines
9 at the bottom of the page.

10 Test number 2, at first, you have a
11 category of DM1. Is it documentary material? This -- Let
12 me back up for a minute to -- let's continue. DM1,
13 information that Nevada intends to cite or rely in
14 support of its position in the licensing
15 proceeding, Right? That's your DM1, right?

16 MR. FITZPATRICK: Yes, Your Honor.

17 JUDGE KARLIN: And that does not contain
18 any reference to, relevant to 3.69, Reg Guide 3.69?

19 MR. FITZPATRICK: No, Your Honor.

20 JUDGE KARLIN: And is it necessary to
21 reference to Reg Guide 3.69 to get the point across
22 that's in the definition of DM1, which is
23 information you intend to cite or rely upon?

24 MR. FITZPATRICK: Well, probably what

1 would be good guidance for them is information that
2 they intend to cite or rely upon in the licensing
3 proceeding. So, that would be guidance.

4 JUDGE KARLIN: But that's not what, the
5 Reg said.

Deleted: en

6 MR. FITZPATRICK: That's what the Reg
7 said.

Deleted: , yes

8 JUDGE KARLIN: Yes. That's what -- in support
9 of its position -- any information upon which a
10 party intends to rely and/or cite in support of its
11 position in the proceeding. So you're not saying
12 you don't have a position. You're just saying this
13 is the standard, it's anything that you intend to
14 cite or rely on in support of your position?

15 MR. FITZPATRICK: We are not saying
16 whether you have a position or not. We are saying
17 the regulation requires exactly those words. They
18 are included, Your Honor.

19 JUDGE KARLIN: Right. Let's go to the
20 next page, page 130 of your guidance document. And
21 this is your discussion of what documentary
22 material number 2 is. And it is, this is the
23 information you say is the criterion -- quote,
24 information that is relevant under Reg Guide 3.69

1 but which does not support Nevada's position.

2 Right?

3 MR. FITZPATRICK: Yes, Your Honor.

4 JUDGE KARLIN: This is the guidance

5 people are supposed to read.

6 Now, would you read me what the Reg says

7 about DM2.

8 MR. FITZPATRICK: Any information that is

9 known to or in possession or developed by a --

10 either is relevant to but does not support the

11 information or that party's position.

12 JUDGE KARLIN: So DM2 does not use the

13 standard relevant under Reg Guide 3.69 as in your

14 guidance memo. It is using a very different

15 standard.

16 MR. FITZPATRICK: No, it doesn't.

17 JUDGE KARLIN: Well, what does the reg

18 say? It says, quote, that is relevant to but does

19 not support ~~that information or that party's~~

20 position. It doesn't say Reg Guide 3.69.

21 MR. FITZPATRICK: That information refers

22 to number one. And number one refers to

23 information we relied on in the licensing

24 proceeding. So the broad character of the

Deleted: w

1 licensing proceeding purveys, these.
2 JUDGE KARLIN: And it might be
3 information relevant to your contentions, your
4 several thousand contentions?
5 MR. FITZPATRICK: Certainly so.
6 JUDGE KARLIN: So, information that is
7 relevant under Reg Guide 3.69, which is what the
8 guidance says, does not correctly follow the
9 language of the regulation? Is that correct?
10 MR. FITZPATRICK: I don't understand the
11 question.
12 JUDGE KARLIN: Does not use the language
13 of the regulation, of DM2, changes what is in the
14 regulation DM2?
15 MR. FITZPATRICK: It omitted a few words.
16 It didn't change the sense whatsoever.
17 JUDGE KARLIN: All right.
18 And Let's go on to the second part of your
19 definition of DM2, which is, but does not support
20 Nevada's position. Are you looking at page 2 of
21 the guidance? Information does not support
22 Nevada's position. Okay.
23 Is that what the regulation says for DM2?
24 MR. FITZPATRICK: I think I just read you

Deleted: ervades

Deleted: Meaning there

1 the regulation.

2 JUDGE KARLIN: Yes. Is that what the
3 regulation says?

4 MR. FITZPATRICK: It says that and some
5 additional words.

6 JUDGE KARLIN: Some additional words. So
7 the additional words might make a difference.

8 Let's go to what it says. It says that the
9 information that does not support that information

10 or that party's position. Is there a difference

11 in it there?

12 MR. FITZPATRICK: That's the difference.

13 JUDGE KARLIN: Would there be a broader
14 coverage if it was, does not support A or B or does
15 not support only A?

16 MR. FITZPATRICK: I don't think it's any
17 broader. It's -- A and B are reliance criteria. A
18 refers to what you intend to rely on, and B refers
19 to what does not support your position.

20 So, I don't think that the added verbiage
21 referring back to A changes the intent or the
22 meaning.

23 May I point out something, Your Honor,

24 while you're looking?

Deleted: a

Deleted: t

Deleted: Can

1 JUDGE KARLIN: Yes, sure.

2 MR. FITZPATRICK: That's our Exhibit 17

3 -- or 18, which was in July '04, which is -- I will
4 concede, let's say it contains some shorthand
5 renditions which I don't believe change the meaning
6 of the writ. But if you look back through Exhibit
7 17 immediately before that, that's a document that
8 was sent to our licensing team just about a year
9 before that, and it includes the actual regulations
10 themselves.

11 And so all the language that we have been
12 reading as only partially captured in this memo
13 were all in perfect detail from the words of the
14 regs supplied to the team.

Deleted: a

15 JUDGE KARLIN: So you gave them a copy of
16 the regs?

17 MR. FITZPATRICK: Gave them the regs.

18 JUDGE KARLIN: Okay. I understand that.

19 But this is an important instruction memo that you
20 sent out, one of two, as I understand it. You sent
21 one out in '04, and you sent one out in '07. Did
22 you send out any other important instructions --

23 MR. FITZPATRICK: Yes, Your Honor, the

24 one I just mentioned, Exhibit 17, which was sent a

1 year before that.

2 JUDGE KARLIN: What day was that? I thought that was -- so
3 that's a different call memo?

4 MR. FITZPATRICK: It's not called a call
5 memo, Your Honor. It's an e-mail containing
6 instructions for the Nevada licensing team. It
7 provides copies of the regulations.

8 It indicates in the text that those are
9 the regulations which we discussed yesterday at our
10 meeting, and it points out specifically -- one that
11 I have highlighted, because it was brought up by

12 DOE, the raw data, calibration, the underlying stuff

13 -- particularly the e-mail in 17, besides providing

14 the exact precise language of the reg for one --

15 definition of material, 1, 2, and 3 -- says with

16 respect to 2.103, the laundry list which we

17 discussed yesterday is in Section A-2.

18 Well, Section A-2, the calibration

19 procedures, probe, log and data log is those

20 detailed raw materials. So, I'm reminded by this

21 memo. This came the day after completion of one of

22 our expert summit meetings. There had been a

23 presentation on the requirements, the regulations

24 had been discussed in detail and specifically the

Deleted: broad

Deleted: e

1 requirements for this underlying raw data had been
2 discussed.

3 And so this e-mail the next day is providing
4 them with all the written text in full of all the
regulations and reminding them that -- drawing their attention
to that raw

5 data one, which is a particular interest to expert
6 witnesses, perhaps, and not lay witnesses because
7 it involves raw data and things like that.

8 JUDGE KARLIN: Okay. I'm not getting at
9 whether it's raw data or graphic-oriented material
10 or memos or work product. I am getting at whether
11 it's information that does not support Nevada's
12 position or the -- Nevada's supporting information.

13 And I am concerned that your guidance
14 memo, which was an important instruction, seriously
15 understated the class of information that's
16 necessary under DM2.

17 But let's go on to the examples in
18 Exhibit C attached to Exhibit H, DOE's Exhibit H.
19 And there is your set of ten examples; right?

20 MR. FITZPATRICK: Right.

21 JUDGE KARLIN: Let's go to that page, I
22 believe it's 132. And as I understand your
23 approach on this one was to give a fact pattern

Deleted: s

24 to -- and then, to discuss how the three tests that

1 you articulated would apply to that fact pattern?

2 MR. FITZPATRICK: It was -- The fact patterns are
3 very simplistic. And it was done to illustrate the
4 use of the, what was called the decision tree, in
5 other words, the three-step process: See if it's
6 relevant; see if it's documentary material; and see
7 if it's in final form.

8 JUDGE KARLIN: So the first screen was if
9 it was relevant. And if it wasn't, it would be
10 knocked out right there, no further analysis?

11 MR. FITZPATRICK: If it is not
12 relevant --

13 JUDGE KARLIN: So it's not relevant to
14 Reg Guide 3.69, it's knocked out, no further
15 analysis?

16 MR. FITZPATRICK: Not necessarily Reg
17 Guide 3.69 but all the information the experts had
18 been given, including complete copies of all the
19 regulations.

20 JUDGE KARLIN: But isn't that what the
21 guidance memo just said, that the criterion for
22 test number one relevance was relevant to Reg Guide
23 3.69? Do we need to go back to that page?

24 MR. FITZPATRICK: No. Test number one

Deleted: h

1 said relevant to our position in the licensing
2 proceeding too.

3 JUDGE KARLIN: Well, let's go back to
4 guideline. Where does it say that? Go back to
5 page 129. Where does it say relevant to your
6 position in licensing proceeding as part of the
7 relevance test, the initial relevance test? Does
8 it say that? I don't see that.

9 MR. FITZPATRICK: That's not part of the
10 relevance test. It's at the bottom of the page.

11 JUDGE KARLIN: Okay. So it's not part of
12 the relevance test. So let's go back to the
13 Exhibit C, ten examples. In each one you give a
14 fact pattern and you analyze it. The memo says
15 that factual situation under your test.
16 Let's go to page 133, which is example D.
17 I will read the facts. They are up there
18 on the board. Quote, Mike Thorne was asked to give
19 his opinion regarding the likely criticality
20 factors involved with the nuclear waste rail cask^k
21 which falls off a bridge and is submerged in the
22 Mississippi River, close quote.

23 Now, I would like to focus on your
24 analysis of documentary material number 2, DM2.

Deleted: t

1 Now, we have just read the facts, and your analysis
2 of whether it's DM2 says there is nothing
3 substantive in the document which does not support
4 Nevada's position.

5 How do we know that? It is not in -- you
6 are presuming a fact that's not in evidence?

7 MR. FITZPATRICK: Yes, Your Honor. There
8 is no such document.

9 JUDGE KARLIN: Why would you put that in -- There is no such
document?

10 MR. FITZPATRICK: There are none of these
11 documents in this instance. These were all
12 hypothetical documents.

13 JUDGE KARLIN: Okay. So you're saying
14 that there can be no DM2 at all?

15 MR. FITZPATRICK: No. The scope of
16 documents to be assumed by the person reading this
17 was simply the narrow scope listed.

18 JUDGE KARLIN: Okay. Then let's go
19 back --

20 MR. FITZPATRICK: So there is no
21 indication that there is anything --

22 JUDGE KARLIN: Let's go back -- Mike
23 Thorne is asked to give his opinion regarding the
24 likely criticality factors, blah, blah, blah. We

1 don't know what his opinion is. It could be
2 positive. It could be negative. It could support.
3 It could not support. We don't know that. And
4 yet, in your analysis, in your application of the
5 standard, you just posit as a given that there is
6 nothing in there that the document does not
7 support. How do you know that?

8 MR. FITZPATRICK: Because Nevada does not
9 have a position on criticality factors involving
10 the rail cast falling off a bridge in the
11 Mississippi River.

12 JUDGE KARLIN: So, you're suggesting that
13 the answer is Nevada has no position?

14 MR. FITZPATRICK: On this --

15 JUDGE KARLIN: You didn't say that. You
16 just said it does not support Nevada's position.
17 Why didn't you just say Nevada has no position, and
18 therefore, there can be no DM2? Is that a more
19 accurate way you're expressing this?

20 MR. FITZPATRICK: Could be.

21 JUDGE KARLIN: Well, I'm not asking could
22 be. I don't understand the application of that
23 standard.

24 MR. FITZPATRICK: There is nothing in the

1 hypothetical -- all the information they had was
2 that which was provided in the hypothetical.

3 JUDGE KARLIN: So if you were in a law
4 school exam and someone said, well, here's the fact
5 pattern, does it meet this test or not, you would
6 say I can't answer that question because you
7 haven't given me enough facts? Not, I would assume
8 that there is nothing in there -- I will assume
9 these facts and therefore I will reach a conclusion
10 that I like?

11 MR. FITZPATRICK: No, Your Honor.

12 JUDGE KARLIN: No?

13 MR. FITZPATRICK: If they were to assume
14 the facts given, if there was another sentence that
15 said it is Nevada's position that rail casts will
16 take out half of Mississippi. If this happens, it
17 is DOE's position that nothing will happen, then
18 you will have more information.

19 Unless you were given more information in
20 the hypothetical, you are not to assume something.

21 JUDGE KARLIN: Well, right. And you have
22 assumed that there is nothing in there.

23 MR. FITZPATRICK: The expert is not to
24 assume something in making this judgment.

1 JUDGE KARLIN: Let's go to DM1; the fact
2 pattern is he's given an opinion. We don't know what
3 that opinion is, don't know the contents of that
4 opinion or anything about it, and now you are going
5 to apply the test, DM1 test, of whether or not it's
6 information that supports and they're going to rely
7 upon.

Deleted: at is being

Deleted: ied

8 You just simply posit the fact that
9 Nevada will rely on it. How do we know that from
10 the example given? How do we know that?

11 MR. FITZPATRICK: I think it says it will
12 not rely on it.

13 JUDGE KARLIN: No, DM1. We are going
14 back to DM1. Nevada will not rely on --

15 MR. FITZPATRICK: Final reports but not
16 this document.

17 JUDGE KARLIN: Yes. So you know what
18 your position is then. Let's go on --

19 MR. FITZPATRICK: No, Your Honor. We
20 don't know what our position is.

21 JUDGE KARLIN: Let's go on to example G
22 on the next page, page 134 of the exhibit, Mr. Cutchin.

23 And Exhibit A -- example in full reads:

24 "Bob Loux states, ask Steve Frishman to comment on

1 Mike Thorne's Criticality Report, and he does so by
2 e-mail, the status of Steve's e-mail."

3 Let's go to DM2 again. And again, you
4 say, there is nothing likely -- there is likely
5 nothing substantive in Steve's e-mail which is not
6 supportive of the position. How do we know that
7 from the facts that you gave us? Are you just not
8 making categorical conclusions without the facts?

9 MR. FITZPATRICK: Exactly, Your Honor.

10 We are asking to assume nothing but the limited
11 amount of information that is given because these
12 are only illustrations of how to apply the
13 three-step test. The substance of them is not
14 really important. It is not intended --

15 JUDGE KARLIN: I'm not sure I can
16 understand that. It seems to me that if you want
17 to have -- evaluate whether something is DM1 or
18 DM2, you need to know what's in the documents so
19 that you can know whether it is supportive or non
20 supportive of Nevada's position.

21 MR. FITZPATRICK: In order to do that,
22 each hypothetical would have had a lengthy
23 hypothetical --

24 JUDGE KARLIN: No, it just --

1 MR. FITZPATRICK: -- another document
2 contained, maybe even attach a document. There are
3 no documents. This is a fabrication.

4 JUDGE KARLIN: I beg to differ. I think
5 the example could simply say as Dr. Steve
6 Frishman has commented on the Criticality Report
7 and he has raised a number of issues that support
8 it and a number of issues that question it.

9 MR. FITZPATRICK: I could have said that.

10 JUDGE KARLIN: Yes. And that would not
11 have been a difficult and long example. And then
12 you could decide whether it's supporting, whether

13 it's non-supporting, whether it's a report or a study
14 which is relevant to 3.69.

Deleted: ing

15 So again, and in the example G, you have

16 sort of a statement -- a bald statement -- there's nothing

Deleted: -

likely

17 substantive in Steve's e-mail which is not
18 supportive of Nevada's position.

19 Let's go to example H.

20 JUDGE MOORE: Were you looking for a
21 response to your last statement?

22 JUDGE KARLIN: No.

23 Example H, on page 4 or page 135. I will read it:

24 Quote, Maury Morganstein in 1985

1 submitted to NWPO, the results of a six-month long
2 experiment done at Catholic University where in a
3 example of C22 alloy was exposed to waters similar
4 to the chemical content in the waters likely to be
5 encountered in a Yucca Mountain storage tunnel.
6 DM2, again, the same bald categorical
7 statement: There is nothing in the document which
8 is not supportive of Nevada's position or likely to
9 be used by another party. How do we know that from
10 the facts given?
11 MR. FITZPATRICK: Because there is no
12 such document, and because the only trace of the
13 document is the example that's given. And the
14 hypothetical does not state one way or the other
15 that there is information that, , you know, is --
16 JUDGE KARLIN: Right. So the correct
17 answer to DM2 would be, we can't answer that
18 question from the facts given. Not that you have
19 an answer.
20 MR. FITZPATRICK: Or there is no
21 indication that there is any un-supporting
22 information.
23 JUDGE KARLIN: No. The correct answer is
24 we can't answer DM2 because we don't know what's in

Deleted: day --

Deleted: n

Deleted: o

1 it.

2 Now, let's go to --

3 MR. FITZPATRICK: It doesn't exist, Your
4 Honor. You have to get that straight. It is a
5 hypothetical. There is no document. These are
6 hypotheticals to illustrate the application --
7 tests that nobody else in this proceeding sent to
8 their parties.

9 It's a little strange that you won't let
10 me tell you what Nevada did, but you will pick
11 apart one simple sample of what Nevada did as
12 perhaps an illustration of, what, lack of good
13 faith on the part of Nevada. I think you have to
14 view the entire picture of what Nevada provided to
15 its troops, including the entire regulations and an
16 explanation of them.

17 JUDGE KARLIN: Okay. Well, I think as I
18 understood it, this was an important instruction
19 that you gave to all of your team and that they
20 would, presumably, take very seriously.

21 So let me just ask with regard to each of
22 the three examples we have probed for DM2, there is
23 a statement, there is nothing in the document which
24 is not supportive of Nevada's position or is likely to be

1 used by another party.

2 Would you look at all ten examples and

3 tell me if that is not virtually the same thing you

4 said for all DM2's?

Deleted: t

5 MR. FITZPATRICK: Unless a hypothetical

6 created a situation where there was something --

Deleted: i

7 JUDGE KARLIN: Would you please look and

8 see. Isn't that virtually the same statement you

9 made for DM2 in every -- all ten of the examples given?

Deleted: kinds

10 MR. FITZPATRICK: That's correct.

11 There's nothing in any of those hypotheticals that

12 states anything contrary to Nevada's position.

JUDGE KARLIN: Now, with regard to

MR. FITZPATRICK:

13 And if I may insert, that is not a

14 mystery, Your Honor, because if DOE has 5,000

15 things to establish under 10 CFR 63, they have no

Deleted: 10

16 choice but to address each one of them. Nevada

17 does not have an obligation to address each one of

18 them. Nevada can analyze those which it chooses,

19 and in some of them, it may find that DOE's work

20 was impressive and in all things -- Nevada will presumably

Deleted: a

not

21 make a contention about those issues.

22 JUDGE KARLIN: I understand.

23 MR. FITZPATRICK: So if Nevada sends a
24 letter to somebody or an e-mail and says I have

1 examined issue A as you requested, and I find that
2 DOE did a great job for the following reasons,
3 that's not the DM1 because we are not going to rely
4 on it in the proceeding. And it's not DM2, non
5 supportive of our position, because every time we
6 say something good of about DOE, that's not non
7 supportive of our position. It becomes --

8 JUDGE KARLIN: I'm not suggesting that.
9 I understand your argument on that point. I just
10 was trying to understand whether any of your ten
11 examples dealt with, addressed, DM2 other than that
12 bold statement there is just no DM2 in here, and
13 apparently not. Let me go on --

14 MR. FITZPATRICK: Had the hypotheticals
15 been more lengthy, they could have hypothesized the
16 situation where something bad --

Deleted: with

17 JUDGE KARLIN: Half a sentence would not
18 take hardly any time. Let's go to another
19 question. It does appear none of your answers are
20 based upon well, Nevada does not have a position.
21 You're saying they just don't -- there is nothing
22 in there that does not support Nevada's position.
23 So are you positing that you do have positions?

24 MR. FITZPATRICK: No, Your Honor, not at

1 all.

2 JUDGE KARLIN: Do you not have positions?

3 MR. FITZPATRICK: These were instructions

Deleted: a

4 to people about how to interpret criteria for

5 admitting documents.

Deleted: bidding

6 And incidentally, you kept emphasizing

7 this was a serious, well-read, dah, dah, dah memo.

8 There must have been many, many of those. I mean,

9 you selected this one. There are many other

10 examples, many other exhibits that were just as

11 serious, just as intended to be relied upon.

12 JUDGE KARLIN: Well, this memo, if I

13 understand it, starts with the proposition, quote,

14 first page, this is an update of my July, 29, 2004

15 call memo. So there has only been two call memos

16 in this time frame; right, in three years?

17 MR. FITZPATRICK: Apparently. Whatever you refer to,

Deleted: There were

18 as a call memo, -- there were other -- sent to the experts -

Deleted: other battles of --

-

19 JUDGE KARLIN: I would like to continue.

20 So, in none of these examples, you say, well,

21 Nevada has not taken a position, therefore, there

22 can be no DM2?

23 MR. FITZPATRICK: We haven't done e that,

Deleted: 't

24 Your Honor, no. We did not because that was not

1 the subject of this, whether we had taken any
2 positions was not a subject of this --
3 JUDGE KARLIN: Wouldn't that be a good
4 example, while we have got some -- here's
5 information, and you say, well, is it DM2? Well,
6 no it's not, because we have not taken a position
7 on that issue. You did not say that.

MR FITZPATRICK: What you suggest --

JUDGE KARLIN: You said
8 there is no DM2 because it doesn't support your
9 position or undermine.
10 Is there anything in any of your

11 instructions, any of them you can cite me to that
12 require people to provide non-supporting
13 information, any information, documents that
14 contain any information that does not support
15 Nevada's contentions or positions?

16 MR. FITZPATRICK: Yes, Your Honor.

17 JUDGE KARLIN: Cite me to something in
18 the memos that says, other than providing the copy
19 of the regs.

20 MR. FITZPATRICK: Well, in the same call
21 memo that you were just reading from, in Exhibit B
22 at the bottom of the first page -- I'm sorry.

23 JUDGE KARLIN: Top of the

Deleted: ¶
10.

Deleted: I'm sorry.

24 second page, is that what you said?

1 MR. FITZPATRICK: Let me -- Top of the second page,
2 I'm sorry.

3 JUDGE KARLIN: And so that's the only place
4 in all this material that you discuss --

5 MR. FITZPATRICK: No, Your Honor. Did you
6 say except for providing regulations?

7 JUDGE KARLIN: Yes, except for providing.
8 You are giving guidance. You are talking with
9 these people, you are giving important
10 instructions. Now, the regulation says DM2 is any
11 information that is relevant to but does not
12 support that information or Nevada's position.

13 Now, is there anywhere there where you
14 give guidance or instruction other than what you
15 just cited to me on how to apply DM2, non
16 supporting information?

17 Seems to me that non-supporting
18 information is very critical. We demanded that DOE
19 provide non-supporting information. We demanded
20 that DOE go through 4 million e-mails to look for
21 the unvarnished truth of non-supporting information
22 that might be found in those e-mails.

23 I'm trying to find out whether you gave
24 any encouragement or instruction in writing -- and

Deleted: s

Deleted: -

1 you can cite to me -- to encourage your people to
2 bring forth any information that does not support
3 Nevada's supporting information or Nevada's
4 position other than that cite?

5 MR. FITZPATRICK: At present, that cite
6 and the documents which transmit the regulations
7 themselves would say that, are the two sources.

8 JUDGE KARLIN: Okay. Let me go back to
9 example D.

10 That's on page 133, Mr. Cutchin.

11 Now, let's focus on this one. I'm
12 concerned about your assessment of DM1. Again, the
13 example is Mike Thorne is asked to give his opinion
14 regarding likely criticality factors, et cetera.
15 Your analysis of the applicability or not of DM1
16 is, quote, Nevada will rely on Dr. Thorne's final
17 report or contentions but not in the licensing
18 proceeding -- Nevada will rely on Dr. Thorne's
19 final report or contentions in the licensing
20 proceeding as well as his oral testimony but not
21 this document.

22 Later down on test number three, you say
23 that Dr. Thorne's report is a final report. Is
24 that not correct?

1 MR. FITZPATRICK: I say it's a report
2 requested by and delivered to Dr. Thorne's client.

3 JUDGE KARLIN: And you say test number
4 three in example D, it is a final bold report. All
5 right.

6 MR. FITZPATRICK: Right.

7 JUDGE KARLIN: So Dr. Thorne's report is
8 a final report. Dr. Thorne's report contains
9 information which Nevada will rely upon, but you
10 are not going to rely upon this document, but you
11 are going to rely upon that information.

12 Doesn't the definition of documentary
13 material in number one say any document that
14 contains information that you will rely upon? And
15 this is information, you are going to rely on it,
16 and it is a final report. Why -- Haven't you
17 misconstrued -- when you say it's not DM1, isn't
18 that wrong?

19 MR. FITZPATRICK: I think the conclusion
20 to number three was that it was going to be
21 included as DM3 because DM3 refers to whether you
22 been relying on it or not.

23 JUDGE KARLIN: I understand DM3, but I
24 think it's DM1 as well. If you give the wrong

1 answer for example, could people not be confused.

2 MR. FITZPATRICK: Why do you think it's

3 DM1?

4 JUDGE KARLIN: Let's just go through it

5 again, and let's look at the definition of DM1.

MR FITZPATRICK: Let's stipulate the definition --

6 JUDGE KARLIN: Any information that you intend to rely upon

or

7 cite in support of its position.

8 Now, you say here that Nevada will rely

9 on Dr. Thorne's final reports or contentions in the

10 license proceeding, but not this document.

11 Now, the definition does not say any

12 documents you rely upon. It says any document that

13 contains information. And this document does

14 contain information that you will rely upon. You

15 ~~won't~~ rely upon that document, but you rely upon

16 the information in that document.

17 MR. FITZPATRICK: I don't think we are

18 relying upon the information in the document. I

19 don't think it says that.

JUDGE KARLIN: Well --

20 Dr. Thorne has been asked to do many

21 sundry different things.

22 JUDGE KARLIN: It says Nevada will rely

Deleted: ill

Deleted: o

23 on Dr. Thorne's final report and contentions.

24 MR. FITZPATRICK: That's contentions.

1 JUDGE KARLIN: But not this document?

2 MR. FITZPATRICK: Right. This document

3 pertains to something that is not likely to be a

4 contention in this proceeding. It's like the barge in the

Mississippi --

5 JUDGE KARLIN: Let's go to example G

6 again. Quote, Bob Loux asked Steve Frishman to

7 comment on Mike Thorne's Criticality Report, and he

8 does so by e-mail, the status of Steve's email,

9 DM1.

10 Quote, Nevada will not rely on Steve's

11 e-mail in a licensing proceeding.

12 What about information in the e-mail?

13 MR. FITZPATRICK: There is nothing

14 stated --

15 JUDGE KARLIN: This document is specific

16 information.

17 MR. FITZPATRICK: There is nothing stated

18 here that indicates one way or the other about the

19 content of the e-mail.

20 JUDGE MOORE: Mr. Fitzpatrick, before we

21 take a break, just so I know what some of your oral

22 argument exhibits are, your oral argument

23 Exhibit 21, is this another collection of materials

24 that you sent out to your team?

1 MR. FITZPATRICK: Yes, Your Honor.

2 JUDGE MOORE: And is one of those
3 materials that you sent out to all of these people
4 which is listed as number 5 on something called
5 Final Training for Nevada's Initial LSN
6 Certification, DOE's November 3rd, 2006 LSN
7 instructions to its staff and contractors?

8 MR. FITZPATRICK: Yes, Your Honor.

9 JUDGE MOORE: And is that guidance
10 document entitled Guidance Concerning Ongoing LSN
11 Obligations?

12 MR. FITZPATRICK: Yes, Your Honor.

13 JUDGE MOORE: And is the third page of
14 that Item 3 part of the matter that you sent out
15 that's part of part of that DOE guidance that says
16 submit potentially^y non-supporting and supporting
17 e-mails^s?

18 MR. FITZPATRICK: Yes, Your Honor.

19 JUDGE MOORE: So that was all the
20 material that was sent out by you?

21 MR. FITZPATRICK: There is another
22 example because in addition to this particular
23 mailing, as you can see from the list of six items
24 under final training, there was six different items

1 sent or re-sent to the team, including Mr. Egan's
2 earlier call memos and other information, but this time
3 including DOE's information, including its
4 description of the Class I and II, its description
5 of Class II.

6 If you are going to analyze, I think you
7 would find this to be far too narrow a description
8 of non-supporting. DOE says Class II simply, if it
9 contains information that is adverse to,
10 contradictory of or inconsistent with information
11 in the first category.

12 JUDGE KARLIN: And you are suggesting that is
13 narrower than your definition, which is DM2
14 information that is relevant -- your suggestion is
15 that that is narrower?

16 MR. FITZPATRICK: It is more narrower
17 than non-supporting generally. Non-supporting can
18 be sort of pabulum, non-supporting. This says
19 adverse to, contradictory to or inconsistent with.

20 Otherwise it doesn't get on DOE's LSN --

21 JUDGE MOORE: It is time to take a break.

22 We will resume this at 11:35. And at that time,
23 when Judge Karlin finishes up his question that he
24 is on, you will be given an opportunity to tell us

Deleted: y

1 what you did, which I believe you wanted to do.

2 We will be adjourned until 11:35.

3

4 (Whereupon, a short break was taken)

5 JUDGE MOORE: Please be seated. Mr. Fitzpatrick, I think
you were already sworn.

Deleted: MR. SHEBELSKIE

6 JUDGE KARLIN: Were you able to talk

7 with your colleagues to find any references to bad

8 faith in DOE's motion to strike?

9 MR. FITZPATRICK: What he came up with

10 one place where DOE said that we had accused them

11 of bad faith at some point and this is much worse,

12 other than that, maybe 7 or 8 examples where they

13 accused us of not acting in good faith, not certifying in
good faith.

14 JUDGE KARLIN: Right. I understand. So there was no
reference

15 where they accused you in the words of acting in bad faith?

Deleted: T

16 MR. FITZPATRICK: Other than saying that we were worse,

17 whatever that means.

18 JUDGE KARLIN: We are almost done with

19 this memo or topic. What I would like to refer you

20 to is your exhibit, your declaration that you filed

21 in association with this. Let's see if I can find

22 that. Bear with me a moment.

Deleted: i

23 Okay, in Nevada's response, I believe the
24 first attachment, page 47 was your declaration.

1 MR. FITZPATRICK: Yes, Your Honor.

2 JUDGE KARLIN: Right, and as you know, I was questioning and
3 asking about -- concerned about DM2 which is -- concerned
about

4 whether your call memo, accurately or properly

5 called for any information that would not support

6 Nevada's position or Nevada's information. If we go

7 to paragraph number 12 of your declaration. Do you

8 have that in front of you?

9 MR. FITZPATRICK: Yes, Your Honor.

10 JUDGE KARLIN: There you say "The expert

11 consultants on Nevada's licensing team were

12 repeatedly cautioned that they had the responsibility of

assuring,

13 that anything they might possibly eventually rely on

14 in forming opinions or writing reports or testifying in

15 connection with the licensing proceeding must be

16 on the LSN at the time of Nevada's certification."

17 Closed quote. I'm struck by the fact that your

18 declaration only focuses on urging your experts to

19 provide information that they might rely upon.

20 Where do you say in your affidavit or declaration that

21 you urgedd them to provide information that might not

22 support Nevada's positions or, which might

23 undermine what they are saying?

Deleted: A

Formatted: Highlight

Deleted: were called

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Highlight

Deleted: di

Deleted: W

Deleted: Y

Deleted:

Formatted: Highlight

Deleted: that they had no reason to f

Deleted: assure

Deleted: up

Deleted: the current

Deleted: needs to

Deleted: to

Deleted: you

24 MR. FITZPATRICK: I don't think that's

Deleted: i

1 in there. That wasn't the point of the affidavit, Your
Honor.

Deleted: is
Deleted:
Deleted: o

2 JUDGE KARLIN: The point of the affidavit, I thought,
3 was to help us conclude that you had
4 fully made all your documentary material available
5 and this only covers DM1.

Deleted: you filed

6 MR. FITZPATRICK: The point of the affidavit and
particularly the point of that paragraph in the affidavit was
7 specifically to respond to DOE's motion and
8 specifically to DOE's accusation that in some
9 global way, that there must be documentary material
10 these experts have generated and tend to rely on
11 for their contentions because there's 2000 contentions and
it's all missing. So

12 that was the focus of the motion. That was the
13 focus of the response and that was the focus of this
14 paragraph and this affidavit. A lot of things I
15 didn't address in the affidavit --

16 JUDGE KARLIN: Did not the motion raise
17 the absence of information would be critical of or
18 undermine your position?

Deleted: mo

19 MR. FITZPATRICK: I don't recall that
20 Your Honor.

21 JUDGE KARLIN: Well, let's go to page 31 of the motion I
22 cited it earlier. I think it does.

Deleted: L
Deleted: that

23 MR. FITZPATRICK: I'm willing to assume

Deleted: surmise

24 it does, Your Honor, without your --

Deleted: .

1 JUDGE KARLIN: At page 31, the motion says the call memo
seemingly advised recipients to omit

Deleted: s

2 critical commentary. So it does seem you've emphasized that
you

3 encouraged people to provide information they would

Deleted: i

4 rely upon. What's missing significantly it seems to me is

Deleted: m

any

5 statement that you encouraged people to provide

6 information that might be critical of or undermine

7 Nevada's position. Maybe did you?

8 MR. FITZPATRICK: Where is that that you're

9 say that it appears that that exists?

10 JUDGE KARLIN: Well, I read your

11 declaration and your declaration says strongly that

12 you urge people to provide any information they

Deleted: at you

13 might rely upon. Where is the corollary that you

14 urged people to provide information that might

15 undermine or not support your position? Where is the

Deleted: mo

16 corollary in your declaration?

Deleted: that

17 MR. FITZPATRICK: We discuss that here

18 and we discussed it with the experts at length that

Deleted: that

19 if an analysis they made establishes that something was

20 done properly, it won't be a contention. I mean that --

Deleted: ill

Deleted: o

21 JUDGE KARLIN: But there might be

22 contentions that you have drafted, thousands of

Deleted: which were

23 contentions which might include -- in your material

24 might have some information that's not supportive

1 of that contention?

2 MR. FITZPATRICK: Well, we have only that issue's not --
3 preliminary contentions and so

Deleted: have

4 JUDGE KARLIN: Have you provided -- In your
5 document production, have you provided any
6 information that is not supportive of Nevada's
7 position or draft contentions?

Deleted:

Deleted: i

8 MR. FITZPATRICK: I assume we have
9 because those instructions --

10 JUDGE KARLIN: No, I don't want you to assume. Did you?

Deleted: d

Deleted: JUDGE KARLIN:

11 -----
12 MR. FITZPATRICK: I don't have
13 comprehensive knowledge of every document in the
14 system, Your Honor. No. I can't answer that question.

Deleted: n

Formatted: Indent: First line: 0.5"

JUDGE KARLIN: Well -- Not

15 every document. But if there are any -- You can't answer.
16 Okay. That's fine.

Deleted: JUDGE KARLIN:

17 JUDGE MOORE: Did Mr. -- Well, let me put it this way -- Did
DOE's counsel in their

Deleted: who

18 meeting with you on January 28th to sincerely
19 resolve your differences, bring up specifically
20 the issue that there were no materials in your LSN
21 collection that were non-supportive?

Deleted: d

22 MR. FITZPATRICK: No, Your Honor. That
23 was not brought up and nothing that's been

24 discussed in the last hour was brought up at that

1 meet and confer.
2 JUDGE MOORE: You were going to, I believe,
3 explain to us what you -- Nevada did.

Deleted: ing

Deleted: a

4 MR. FITZPATRICK: Yes, a very shortened version -- certainly
a shortened version.

Deleted: A

5 But first off, what we were expected to do and
6 the NRC spoke in Federal Register Notice in 2004
7 Volume 69 at 32,843 and they are talking about the
8 difficulty and this is the whole actual what this
9 motion was about, had to do with whether or not
10 Nevada has or has not made a good faith effort to gather
11 the documentary material, and put it on its LSN, or
12 whether it hadn't made that effort.

Deleted: F

Deleted: all from

Deleted: 3

Deleted: t

Deleted: i

Deleted: ,

Deleted: they had

13 And the basis of the proof was simply an
14 analysis of size of document collections ,
15 4,800 equals incomplete. And that presumes that -- I
16 might add before I read this -- that presumes that
17 Nevada somehow has an obligation to rush to
18 complete a bunch of documents to get them on the
19 LSN to give them to DOE. And that's its mission in
20 life.

Deleted: for the

Deleted: T

21 Well, it really -- its primary mission in
22 this context at this time is to work toward the
23 development of contentions for submission in the
24 licensing proceeding which contentions will not be

1 due for a year based on an LA which will not be
2 filed for at least 6 months, which will be
3 predicated on documents like preclosure safety
4 analysis, TSPA, and TSPA-AMR, and other documents which are
not
5 even done yet.

Deleted: TSPA

6 So that's the scenario we find ourselves
7 in not with an obligation to rush to completion and
8 throw on an LSN things until they are done. We do however,
9 have a duty and we certainly recognize it of
10 putting those things on the LSN as they are

11 completed. Now, as far as the difficulty of doing that
12 up front at this time, the NRC said at 32843, the
13 first two classes of documentary material are tied

Deleted: A
Deleted: r
Deleted: 2

14 to reliance criteria. Reliance is fundamentally
15 related to a position that the party in the repository

Deleted: ,
Deleted: the
Deleted: of

proceeding will take in
16 regard to compliance with the Commission regulations on the
issuance of a
17 construction and license.

Deleted: s

18 These compliance issues take the form of

19 contentions of law or fact that a party has
20 successfully had admitted for litigation in the repository
proceeding under the rules

Deleted: the
Deleted: to
Deleted: and
Deleted: laws

21 of practice.

22 The Commission is clarifying that because
23 the full scope of coverage of the reliance concept
24 will only become apparent after proffered

1 contentions are admitted by the presiding officer
 2 in the proceeding, an LSN participant would not be
 3 expected to identify specifically documents that
 4 fall within either Class I or Class II documentary

Deleted: s

Deleted: d

5 material in the pre-License Application phase. As a
 consequence, while it is not

Deleted: s

Deleted: a

Deleted: .

Deleted: w

6 possible to say that there are no special
 7 circumstances that would necessitate --

Deleted: on

8 JUDGE KARLIN: No. Are you skip -- I think you're skipping
 9 the paragraph.

Deleted: s

10 MR. FITZPATRICK: I'm skipping large

11 sections, Your Honor. Not --

12 JUDGE KARLIN: Well, I think you're skipping an

13 important part. Let's continue reading where you just left
off, please. I'll read it for you. "In this

Deleted: --

14 regard, the Commission may -- the Commission still expects

all

15 participants to make a good faith effort to have
 16 made available, all of their documentary material
 17 that may eventually be designated Class I and Class
 18 II document material by the date specified for

19 initial compliance, in section 2.1003(a), of the

Deleted: "

Deleted: A

Deleted: T

Deleted: i

20 Commission's regulations. I think that's an important

omission and an important statement. You're

21 still expected to make a good faith effort to make a DM1,

DM2 available.

22 MR. FITZPATRICK: Your Honor, it's not an

23 omission in that, I was reading the sections that had not

24 been already quoted by DOE in its brief and.

Deleted: i

Deleted: .

Deleted: . They are

1 already quoted by Nevada in its brief which the Board said
it

2 was going to read. I was reading sections that

3 were embellishing on that. There is no question that --

4 and we don't duck or avoid the fact that the Board

5 said that a good faith attempt would be made to

6 include documents that may be eventually relied on -- I
think

7 you read words almost verbatim to that effect in our
instructions to our experts, so

8 we are not hiding from that.

9 JUDGE KARLIN: I was almost confused when

10 I was trying to follow along what you were reading and you
just kept reading

11 and I said, wait a second, that didn't say that. There's a
-- It jumped somewhere and so

12 every time you jumped, I wanted to sort of

13 understand what you left out.

14 JUDGE MOORE: Mr. Fitzpatrick, as I

15 understand it, DOE has issued the EIS and a number of

16 supplemental EISs and a number of draft

17 supplemental EISs, is that correct?

18 MR. FITZPATRICK: I think that's correct,

19 Your Honor.

20 JUDGE MOORE: Now, with regard to any

Deleted: are

21 contentions that DOE may wish to raise with -- in -- I'm
22 sorry -- Nevada wishes to raise with regard to that --
23 those EISs, I recognize the staff has not yet
24 determined, whether they will be -- the staff will do a

Deleted: at

1 supplementation; is Nevada's position the same,
2 that it can't take a position?

3 MR. FITZPATRICK: I think that if I'm not
4 mistaken on the SEIS, there is a comment period on
5 that right now.

6 JUDGE MOORE: That those are not
7 supplements. The generic or the -- isn't -- There's one
8 been out for at least three
9 years. It's final.

Deleted: wo

10 MR. FITZPATRICK: Right, three years that we commented on.
And then, there

Deleted: is

11 is one that is a supplement that I think is in a
12 comment period and when that becomes a final rule,
13 final EIS, I think that it's likely at that time -- I mean
--

14 Nevada will certainly analyze it and undertake to
15 determine if there are disagreements.

Deleted: t

Deleted: --

16 JUDGE MOORE: But the DOE, EIS documents,
17 let's call them NEPA documents that are now final;
18 aren't you in the position to have to produce and
19 know what your position will be on those and put it
20 forth at this time?

Deleted: legal

21 MR. FITZPATRICK: I don't think that we
22 have drafted any documents. We do not have an
individual assigned on the team yet with

Deleted: y

Deleted: s

Deleted: any

23 responsibility to ~~draft~~ those contentions that may be

24 directed to the EIS. I think that is something

Deleted: o

1 that will be done. It probably will be done after the
final version

2 of the supplement. We commented on the SEIS years
3 and years ago, on the FEIS years and years ago.

Deleted: s

4 But as far as I'm aware, the last work product that
5 was generated on that subject --

6 JUDGE MOORE: Is that material in either
7 your collection or DOE's collection?

Deleted: KARLIN

Formatted: Highlight

8 MR. FITZPATRICK: I'm not sure, Your
9 Honor. The finish of that quote from the NRC was, as a
10 consequence while it is not possible to say that

11 there are no special circumstances that would,
12 necessitate a ruling by the PAPO on the

Deleted: ill

13 availability of particular documents in the
14 pre-license application stage, based on Class I or
15 Class II status, disputes over Class I or Class II

16 documentary material, generally of the type that would be
more

Deleted: s which are

17 appropriately raised before the presiding officer
18 designated during the time following the admission

19 of contentions when the NRC staff working to
20 complete the safety evaluation report in its entirety.

Deleted: ed

21 In any event, we were well aware of the

22 excepted portion which I did not read, in the briefs, and
that 's,

Deleted: ac

Deleted: was

23 the course of action that we followed. We believe that

24 there were three requirements to be met in order to

1 do the LSN correctly. And I'm going to quote from DOE
 2 what it said in response to our motion to strike
 3 theirs because I think this is a correct statement of the
requirements.

Deleted: would

4 JUDGE MOORE: This is back in 2004?

Deleted: KARLIN

5 MR. FITZPATRICK: No sir, this is the one
 6 a few months ago. They had three requirements.

Deleted: B

7 One, a certification required by 10 CFR 2.1009(b),
 8 Participants' attestation that it has implemented
 9 procedures to enable it to meet its LSN obligations,
 10 not just in the present but in going forward as
 11 well, procedures.

Deleted: to

12 Number two: It is an attestation that
 13 the participant has implemented training of its
 14 personnel in order to enable the participant to meet and
 15 continue to meet its LSN obligations. And three, it is
 16 an attestation that the participant has made

Deleted: the

Deleted: s

17 available its existing documentary material and even
 18 DOE said, parenthetically, to the extent it can
 19 reasonably be identified in the pre-license
 20 application phase (before contentions), and that it

Deleted: to

21 will continue to seasonably supplement its
 22 production with additional documentary material that is
 23 thereafter created or identified.

Deleted: r

Deleted: to

Deleted: y

24 That is exactly what we have undertaken

1 to do. The training, the establishment of procedures,
 2 the gathering of a database that meets the LSN 10,
 3 CFR_2 requirements. We began in 2003 which is more
 4 than four years ago with the first expert universal
 5 summit meeting we call them in late 2003 and began
 6 there with the session regarding training
 7 procedures and the definitions and what was to be
 8 included in the LSN.

9 In June of 2004, was when -- and I will
 10 not go to the exhibits because it will take too
 11 much time and we have looked at some of them any
 12 way. But, when we circulated this specific regulations,

13 we just had another expert summit in June, '04. We
 14 discussed those issues again and one specific issue
 15 that drew a lot of attention from the experts was
 16 that requirement to provide raw data, calibration, all
 17 those things in 2.1003(a)(2). And those were all discussed
 18 at the meeting and then the day following, the REGs
 19 were sent to them particularly, drawing their attention to
 that

20 (a)(2) as the laundry list of things they needed to watch
 21 for -- underlying things.

22 JUDGE MOORE: You, in your oral argument
 23 exhibits and I don't have the one in front of me,
 24 put in, what would appear to be graphic-oriented

Deleted: and

Deleted: i

Deleted: i

Deleted: w

Deleted: A-

Deleted: to bring

Deleted: A-

Deleted: one

Deleted: those

Deleted: I

Deleted: but the exhibit,

1 material, Is that correct?

2 MR. FITZPATRICK: I think the one we just
3 spoke of.

4 JUDGE MOORE: In your oral argument
5 exhibit?

6 MR. FITZPATRICK: Yes, Your Honor. Exhibit 17? Okay..

Deleted: Correct

7 JUDGE MOORE: Correct. Now, is that illustrative that

Deleted: I

8 such material is in the LSN

MR FITZPATRICK: Absolutely, Your Honor.

JUDGE MOORE: Or is that exclusive.

Deleted: o

Formatted: Indent: First line: 0.5"

9 That's all there is?

10 MR. FITZPATRICK: Oh, no, Your Honor, no.

11 We have examples and actually we put some examples

12 in the oral argument exhibits. Exhibit 26 is about

13 five exemplars of laboratory notebooks all from Ms. April

Pulvirenti on corrosion.

Deleted: --

14 JUDGE MOORE: Did -- During your January 28th

Deleted: KARLIN

15 meeting with counsel for DOE, did they specifically

16 raise the issue that there were no graphic-oriented

17 materials in your LSN collection?

18 MR. FITZPATRICK: I think they raised the

19 issue that they thought there was a scarcity of

20 them.

21 JUDGE MOORE: And what was your

Deleted: KARLIN

22 response?

23 MR. FITZPATRICK: My response during that
24 conversation and my response today has always been

1 the same. We believe that we have in good faith
 2 created a complete database, LSN database. We
 3 believe that, you know -- I can go through the list but all
 4 of the sessions we have conducted large and small
 5 and documentary and oral, have inculcated these
 6 definitions and steps and we have done a good job.
 7 Certainly, we have put forth a good faith effort.

Deleted: p

8 If we have not -- if we have missed anything as I said in
 9 the meet, and confer, and I said in our brief and I say
 10 today, if we have missed something, we're human
 11 just like anyone else. DOE missed some things and
 12 we told them and they could put them in. If that
 13 happens, we will be happy to do it.

Deleted: ing

Deleted: body

14 JUDGE MOORE: DOE makes in their motion
 15 the assertion there are no privileged--you filed no
 16 privilege logs, and there are no bibliographic headers for
 privileged

Deleted: KARLIN

Deleted: oun

17 documents. One, did they raise that on in the
 18 January 28th meeting?
 19 MR. FITZPATRICK: I don't think that is
 20 an objection that they have to our database. I
 21 don't think they raised it but I don't think that
 22 is an objection.

Deleted: KARLIN

23 JUDGE MOORE: Okay. My mistake. I'm sorry.

JUDGE KARLIN: Is there an absence of work product?

JUDGE MOORE: I noticed that there are

24 no privilege logs and there don't appear to be any.

Formatted: Indent: First line: 0.5"

1 MR. FITZPATRICK: Right. And if you look, you
 2 might find some documents that you think might have been
 3 claimed.

4 JUDGE MOORE: And why is that?

5 MR. FITZPATRICK: Because we determined
 6 that we would not assert the privilege that we
 7 might have asserted as to some documents that we
 8 had segregated and analyzed for that purpose. We
 9 decided we are a state organization, we are paid by
 10 taxpayer and unless there is some justification,
 11 there is no reason that they should not see what we do.

12 JUDGE KARLIN: Can we just clarify -- did
 13 they raise the absence of work product in the
 14 consultation?

Deleted: I

Deleted: that

Deleted: d

15 MR. FITZPATRICK: I don't believe so.

16 JUDGE KARLIN: Okay. Because the attorney work
 17 product -- work product

18 JUDGE MOORE: So, in Nevada's view no inference should be
 19 drawn, certainly, no negative inference, should be
 20 drawn that there are no claimed privileged
 21 documents?

Deleted: s

22 MR. FITZPATRICK: No. As a matter of
 23 fact, we recited in our certification that we had
 24 made the determination not to assert the privilege

1 to those documents that we might have in the
2 interest of an open transparent proceeding.

3 JUDGE MOORE: Now, you have in your oral
4 argument exhibits,-- never mind, go ahead, proceed.

5 MR. FITZPATRICK: What I'd like -- Finishing up about --
6 in the end, what the criticism is, it isn't really of our

Deleted: is not

7 procedures because certainly, our training and
8 procedures, if anything, they exceed DOE's and I
9 think are more broad and catch more things than the
10 definitions that I have seen for DOE's.

11 But I don't believe that they -- there was one
12 exception about the distribution and that was fixed
13 by steps taken by Ms. Lynch and followed by the
14 declaration to reinforce it. But they left in the position
-- they are not

15 criticizing that we went about it the wrong way.

16 And although they seem to say it in the brief, because of
the

Deleted: to me

17 attachments, we have attached calibration logs, raw
18 data, laboratory notebooks, just samples of those
19 things, they can't assert that we have excluded any
20 category of documents like as a category that we
21 have told people don't do this.

22 There is something with everything in and so
23 what's left is, DOE's second guessing the judgments of

24 the Nevada team as to what they are going to rely

1 on and not rely on in the proceeding. And as I
2 said, our goal or our contentions are a year away
3 and they are based upon documents which largely
4 don't exist yet.

5 JUDGE MOORE: Without in any way
6 belittling Nevada's efforts, to date; is it
7 Nevada's view that DOE has perhaps overestimated
8 what Nevada has done to date? That would seem to
9 be the gist of what you are saying in that it took
10 a while to gather a team of experts, only 17 hours
11 have been billed a month by Dr. Thorne and you give
12 quite a litany. Is this an Iraq/Iranian situation
13 where the weapons of mass destruction were smoke
14 and mirrors from the perspective of DOE?

15 MR. FITZPATRICK: If DOE believes what it
16 wrote in its motion, DOE has far overestimated the
17 content of Nevada's effort. I will give you an
18 example. During -- they quote grandiose numbers of
19 dollars and 25 years and so many experts. The point
20 is, our expert team was essentially put on whatever
21 you put a computer on screen to sleep, almost in
22 its entirety from June '04 or that summer until the
23 summer of '07 when two and a half million documents
24 were finally released.

Deleted: interest

Deleted: in

Deleted: my

1 It was known to all of us that there were
 2 documents that were relevant to the LSN that had
 3 been segregated by DOE sent to Mr. Graser for that
 4 purpose but under an agreement, that they would not be
 5 released to the public. Now, I'm not here to
 6 attack that decision or that's besides the point
 7 today. What is relevant today is the false
 8 assumption that somehow, Nevada had a team of
 9 experts pouring over those documents. We did not.
 10 The only documents that were available on
 11 the LSN until last summer were ones that had been
 12 put up in June '04 which means they predated that.
 13 So for 2008 or so, LA filing, one can speculate
 14 that pre 2004 documents which have been replaced and
 15 revised and reiterated are not of great value.

Deleted: A

Deleted: ,

Deleted: it

16 JUDGE KARLIN: Well, let me ask that -- a couple of points -
 17 - Didn't we already cover
 18 that Nevada has indeed as Mr. Loux stated, drafted
 19 thousands of contentions?

19 MR. FITZPATRICK: That's what Mr. Loux
 20 said. We agreed.

21 JUDGE KARLIN: Mr. Loux, and so you agreed that Nevada
 22 has drafted thousands of contentions, they're draft,
 23 they're preliminary
 draft, but there's thousands of contentions -- okay --

Deleted: s

Deleted: of

24 MR. FITZPATRICK: We 've gone over this, but he said -- they

are

Deleted: ere

1 different from what you or me mean by a contention, sir.

2 JUDGE KARLIN: I think you are quite

3 modest. Certainly I understand contentions can be drafted
 4 and need to

5 be drafted carefully, but if you have thousands of
 6 contentions, that would seem to tell me that people

7 have given a lot of thought to these issues and have

8 developed positions and contentions. They may not

9 be finalized. They have not cited the chapter and verse of
 10 the application

11 that is deficient because they don't have the

12 application. But you are very modest to say that

13 represents a very little amount of work.

14 It sounds like a lot of thinking that

15 must have gone into thousands of contentions.

16 MR. FITZPATRICK: Now, that's pure

17 speculation and incorrect speculation.

18 JUDGE KARLIN: Okay. But there are thousands of

19 contentions. That's not speculation.

20 MR. FITZPATRICK: Let me give you an example because

21 there is an example in the record. In Exhibit P of

22 DOE's -- attached to DOE's motion, there's various exhibits

23 attached. One is a report, from one of the experts and it

24 was not put

25 in the LSN because it has contentions in it. It was put,

Deleted: I'll

Deleted: i

Deleted: s

Deleted: But

22 in the LSN in spite of the fact that it has contentions in
it.

Deleted: --

23 JUDGE KARLIN: It has 37 contentions? Okay.

24 MR. FITZPATRICK: Something like that.

1 And if you read them, you will see. Number one,
 2 you see there are a couple of sentences. Number
 3 two, you will see in 35 out of 37 instances the
 4 statement begins, DOE assumes this and I don't know
 5 if that is correct.

6 DOE has failed to assess that and I think
 7 they should. DOE has failed to assess this and I

8 think they should. So -- I mean -- that's an exemplar of
 9 Mr. Loux's contentions. That's not in my view a
 10 contention nor does it establish a position. It
 11 points out a lack of something.

Deleted: And

Deleted: i

Deleted: it clause

12 JUDGE KARLIN: I think that's quite

13 commonly, what we get in contentions is an
 14 allegation that the applicant or the application
 15 fails to address a certain issue or inadequately

Deleted: in

Deleted: did

16 addresses an important issue and -- but let me change --
let me move to your --,

Deleted: --

Deleted: let's move on.

17 MR. FITZPATRICK: One other thing. Using that as an
 example,

Deleted: i

18 I would say -- I mean -- this is pure off the hip shot, I
 19 would say that Mr. Morganstein who wrote those 35
 20 contentions may have done so in a day. I don't

Deleted: that

21 know -- may have done those in a day. No other member of
 the team participated in

22 that effort whatsoever.

23 So, if are you counting contentions and

24 this wonderful global mass of effort that we are

1 being too modest about, there is an example. You've
 2 seen 37 of them. They took one person, one
 3 afternoon, work. So let's put it in context if we
 4 are going to.

Deleted: 's

5 JUDGE KARLIN: Can I ask some questions
 6 about your brief, page 30. I'm con -- This is under the
 7 subject of Duplication. Can we bring that up? Which is
 8 that is Response Page 30 in this area, you are going over a
 number

Deleted: There

9 of DOE assertions and your response to them. And the one at
 10 the bottom of the page, DOE omission and there is a
 11 discussion about a Dr. Barkatt -- is that his name -- Dr.
Barkatt -- I'll wait for you

12 to get that page in front of you.

13 MR. FITZPATRICK: Page 30, yes, sir.

14 JUDGE KARLIN: Page 30. And you were addressing a
 15 DOE allegation that they did a search on the author
 16 field of Dr. Barkatt and for your Nevada's LSN
 17 collection and they only got 34 hits. You with me?

Deleted: l

18 MR. FITZPATRICK: Yes, sir.

19 JUDGE KARLIN: And you say -- well, it's
 20 actually 37. But then you go on to give a
 21 response, -- "more importantly, what DOE failed to
 22 do was to conduct a search to report of all of LSN

Deleted: is note the

databases using

23 Dr. Barkatt in the author field and this would have

24 yielded 107 hits," okay?

Deleted: .

1 MR. FITZPATRICK: Okay. Yes, Your Honor.

2 JUDGE KARLIN: And then, you make the

3 statement that I'm concerned about, the next

4 statement. "Since Nevada is not expected to put

5 on its LSN, database duplicates of documents

Deleted: claimants

Deleted: ,

6 already on the LSN, there is no reason Nevada would

7 have felt it necessary to put any of those 107 hits

8 on. I don't know whether that is a fair,

Deleted: for --

Deleted: n

Deleted: ,

9 assessment of the Regs. Could we go to the REGs? I,

Deleted: .A-1

10 ask you to pull out, 2.1003(a)(1)? It's on page 105.

Deleted: 2

MR FITZPATRICK: Okay.

11 JUDGE KARLIN: Okay. Now, the facts as I

12 understand it from your brief, are that Nevada

13 put -- Dr. Barkatt is one of your experts?

14 MR. FITZPATRICK: Yes, Your Honor.

15 JUDGE KARLIN: Nevada put 37 documents

16 authored by Dr. Barkatt on your LSN, right?

Deleted: the

17 MR. FITZPATRICK: So DOE found doing a

Deleted: ur

Deleted: the

18 search -- an author search --

Deleted: --

19 JUDGE KARLIN: Well, they found 34 and you said

Deleted: T

20 it was 37 on Nevada's database. And you said,

21 yeah, well, but actually, other people already put other

Dr.

22 Barkatt and you got 107 hits if you look under

23 other people's submissions, right?

24 Let's go to the REG. 2.1003(a) (1) talks

Deleted: 0
Deleted: -A1

1 about a requirement to produce documents. If you
 2 go to the middle of that regulation, it says -- and this
 3 is I think the only portion in the REGs that deals
 4 with the sort of exception that you don't want to
 5 put duplicates on. And it says, provided -- and now you go
to the middle of it and says

Deleted: --

6 "provided however that an electronic file need not
 7 be provided for acquired documentary material that
 8 is already been made available by the potential
 9 party, interested Governmental al participant, or party that
 10 originally created the documentary material,
 11 period."

Deleted: te

12 Now does that "exception ion for duplicates"
 13 apply to your own experts' generated, documents?

Deleted: ing

14 MR. FITZPATRICK: My reading was it did. Apparently, you're
suggesting it did not.

Deleted: T

15 JUDGE KARLIN: Well, tell me how it doesn't? Did -- did --
 16 Is this a document that you acquired? Dr. Barkatt
 17 generated it. He is the author of it. He is your
 18 expert.

MR FITZPATRICK: Right.

JUDGE KARLIN: So presumably, this is not -- you
 19 originally generated it or your expert originally generated
it.

Formatted: Indent: First line: 0.5"

MR FITZPATRICK: That's right, Your Honor.

JUDGE KARLIN: So it does

Deleted: .

Formatted: Indent: First line: 0.5"

20 not fit this regulatory exclusion.

21 MR. FITZPATRICK: If you're reading is

Deleted: th

22 correct, then my reading was mistaken that if a document is

Deleted: i

Deleted: . I

23 already on the LSN, you don't have to duplicate it.

Apparently, a correct reading would be

24 even if the document is on the LSN ten times over,

Deleted: E

1 if your expert generated it, you need to put it on
2 the --

3 JUDGE ROSENTHAL: How is DOE prejudiced
4 even assuming that Judge Karlin's reading of the
5 regulation is correct? As long as the document is
6 on the LSN, this is not simply -- at most technical
7 violation that is not prejudicial at all?

8 MR. FITZPATRICK: If the document is on,

9 I don't see the problem.

10 JUDGE KARLIN: Well, perhaps there's a problem that -- the
only exception

11 is for documents that are duplicates of something that
someone else is generating.

12 What is the value in having the person who
13 generated the documents put all of them on their
14 LSN even if other people put some of them on?

15 Well, the value is to
16 have some assurance that Nevada or the party in
17 question has provided all of their documentary

18 material that they and their experts generated. It seems to

19 me there is some value there to know that yes, you

exhausted the universe of

20 documentary material that you generated.

21 MR. FITZPATRICK: I just didn't understand

22 that putting it on a second or 11th time would

Deleted: a

Deleted: at all

Deleted: P

Deleted: the

Deleted: MR. FITZPATRICK:

Deleted: be based on

Deleted: JUDGE KARLIN

23 create that reassurance.

JUDGE KARLIN: Well, the problem is you may not -- they

24 may have missed it. You're relying on DOE to put all your

Formatted: Indent: First line: 0.5"

Deleted: T

Deleted: ,

1 experts' material on for you?

2 MR. FITZPATRICK: No, of course not.

3 JUDGE KARLIN: Okay. But within the wording of the

4 regulation, I think you misconstrued the

5 duplication requirement.

6 MR. FITZPATRICK: So I made a mistake in

7 my brief?

JUDGE MOORE: Mr. Fitzpatrick, can you --

8 JUDGE KARLIN: Legally, yes

MR FITZPATRICK: Okay.

JUDGE KARLIN: And you made

9 a mistake in your instructions to your experts in

10 terms of what documents they need to make --

11 provide.

MR FITZPATRICK: Is that a question?

JUDGE KARLIN: No.

12 JUDGE MOORE: Mr. Fitzpatrick, can you

13 point to me where in DOE's motion they are

14 complaining about any duplication of documents

15 problem, with regard to your collection?

16 MR. FITZPATRICK: I don't recall their

17 complaining about that.

18 JUDGE MOORE: Would you wrap it up.

19 MR. FITZPATRICK: Right, Your Honor. I mean -- I guess we

-- go ahead

Deleted: The recording

Formatted: Indent: First line: 0.5"

Deleted: a

Deleted: or

Deleted: s

Formatted: Indent: First line: 0.5"

20 before I wrap it up.

21 JUDGE KARLIN: Okay. I would like you to

22 refer to DOE's brief page 26 and 27 with regard to

23 Mr. Frishman. Do you have that?

24 MR. FITZPATRICK: I don't have DOE's brief. He's put up our

brief.

Deleted: the piece

1 I would be happy to have you read the sentence you
2 are talking about, Your Honor.

3 JUDGE KARLIN: Okay. In DOE's brief, they
4 have this chart, you may remember of various of
5 your expert's team, I'm not sure and one of them is
6 Mr. Frishman. I don't know whether it's Dr.
7 Frishman or Mr. Frishman. It is shown in the chart

8 under -- he authored -- or at least a search for his name
under author,

9 shows two documents and search for his name as
10 addressee shows two documents, a total of four
11 documents, author or addressee by Mr. Steve
12 Frishman.

13 It then goes on to say on page 27 that
14 Mr. Frishman has been a full-time consultant to or
15 employee of Nevada since 1988. I guess that's 20
16 years and then, raises the concern, alleges
17 speculatively, that it is a certainty that Mr. Frishman has
created and

18 received hundreds of technical and scientific
19 documents concerning Yucca Mountain.

20 You didn't answer that in your response, I don't think.

21 Can you tell me what 's your r reaction to that?

22 MR. FITZPATRICK: Sure. Mr. Frishman is
23 an employee of the state; he is not a member of the

Deleted: it.

Deleted: H

Deleted: s

Deleted: nd

Deleted: ed

Deleted: is

24 hired consulting team. He has not been given any

|

1 particular assignment in any particular discipline to
 review

Deleted: or

2 information or to even attempt in the future to
 3 form opinions or to sponsor contentions. He's an
 4 employee of the state, much like Susan Lynch who
 5 signed an affidavit here.

6 JUDGE KARLIN: Well, let me -- So, they alleged that -- They
 say that he is a geologist

Deleted: to

7 and he is quote, technical policy coordinator for
 8 Nevada's Nuclear Project's Agency, a position he
 9 held for over a decade. What is his position? Is
 10 that is his position?

11 MR. FITZPATRICK: That's his position.

12 JUDGE KARLIN: So he's a technical policy
 13 coordinator for Nevada's nuclear projects agency. Sounds
 like an

14 important position. Is it?

15 MR. FITZPATRICK: It is an important
 16 position.

17 And he probably sends and
 18 receives many documents every single day.

Deleted: JUDGE KARLIN:

19 JUDGE KARLIN: And only four of them are
 20 documentary material.

Deleted: MR. FITZPATRICK

Deleted: o

21 MR FITZPATRICK: And only four of them are
 22 documentary material. I will give you an example.

Deleted: JUDGE KARLIN

23 Mr. Shebelskie has been working on this case

24 full-time for years. If you do an author search for Mr.

1 Shebelskie, you will get a goose egg.

2 JUDGE KARLIN: Well, Mr. Shebelskie, is an

Deleted: He

Formatted: Indent: First line: 0.5"

attorney and could claim attorney client privilege.

3 There are a number of documents in the privilege logs,

Deleted: aw

4 which I think are from or two Mr. Shebelskie.

5 MR. FITZPATRICK: And if he did, if he

6 authored them, he would be in the author index with

7 a privileged document and he's not. It's a goose

8 egg. And the point is, I'm not bent out of shape

9 about that. I have very few myself. The point is,

10 even though Mr. Shebelskie and I each generate, I'm

11 sure a dozen e-mails a day, easily, regarding some

12 aspect of this proceeding --

13 JUDGE KARLIN: Is this one of these

14 factual issues, where we might let DOE take Mr.

Deleted: tions

15 Frishman's deposition to find out what kind of documents

Deleted: see

16 he may have generated?

17 MR. FITZPATRICK: I don't see what basis

18 you suggest that, Your Honor.

JUDGE KARLIN: Well --

19 MR. FITZPATRICK: The basis is -- The gentleman has been

20 employed for 20 years.

21 JUDGE KARLIN: A prima fascia case that a senior person

22 in Nevada's team, has only had two -- four documents, to

Deleted: that

23 and from him that qualify as documentary material

24 and is a factual question and maybe we could issue some

Deleted: you can

Deleted: and get a

1 questions for Mr. Frishman to answer or you to answer or
2 for Mr. Frishman or maybe DOE can take his deposition.

3 MR. FITZPATRICK: You can do any of those

4 things, Your Honor but I could do exactly the same

5 thing, starting with Mr. Ward Sproat and going all down

Deleted: to

6 through ranks through Russ Dyer and everyone down there,

7 the 2500 or however many employees they have and

8 Bechtel has and everyone else has and question how

9 many documents show up when you do an author search

10 and I will tell you right now as we said in our

11 brief, DOE left the author block vacant in many,

12 many, many -- I don't know if most -- but many of

13 those headers.

14 And so if we did an author search under

15 Russ Dyer, chief engineer, if you came up with 2

16 and 2, whatever that was, I guess you would say

17 that that creates a prima fascia issue of whether

18 Mr. Dyer put his documents in or not and that could

19 be replicated for 2500 DOE employees for the simple

20 reason that even if they tried to put all the

21 documents in, they didn't put their author name in

22 the header. And so, if Joe Smith had a hundred

Deleted: we

23 documents -- an honest hundred -- and they are all in, if

you do an author

24 search for Joe Smith, you're likely to come up with

1 ten and you're gonna say Mr. Smith was on the project for
years and

2 only has 10 documents, we better do a deposition. And it
just doesn't --

Deleted: you

Deleted: get

3 JUDGE KARLIN: Final question. When we granted your motion
to

4 strike DOE's certifications in 2004, the consequence was
5 DOE could not file its application. It was delayed whatever
6 amount of time it was delayed, but it was barred from
filing an application. If

Deleted: . T

7 we were to grant the motion to strike Nevada's
8 certification or as we have already done, granted a
9 motion to strike the City of Las Vegas'
10 certification, would you be barred from filing
11 motions to compel or otherwise presenting arguments
12 here until you cured that defect?

13 MR. FITZPATRICK: I don't have an opinion -- I'd have to
14 research to determine exactly what restrictions
15 would exist on us in the interim.

Deleted: would

16 JUDGE KARLIN: Could we impose that
17 responsibility? Could we impose that?

18 MR. FITZPATRICK: To do the research? Sure.

19 JUDGE KARLIN: No. No. It seems a logical
20 thing to think about. They filed a motion to
21 strike. What would happen to Nevada if it were

22 granted? Anything? Haven't you thought about that?

23 MR. FITZPATRICK: Well, I mean certainly,

24 the initial effect would be that upon whatever

1 basis -- that would be the important thing -- the
 2 action was taken, apparently, some remedial action
 3 would need to be taken and taken quickly because of
 4 course, Nevada does not want any level of
 5 participation in this proceeding limited for any
 6 duration of time.

7 So, it would take those steps necessary
 8 to remedy. Having been involved in the creation of
 9 the LSN, I'm at a loss if you were to say, go back
 10 tomorrow and do it better, we made a good faith
 11 effort to apply three regulations of 10 CFR 2, the
 12 definitions of 10 CFR2, we were required to and did
 13 in our best faith effort, trained individuals for
 14 over four years, put out procedures as to how the
 15 documents would become be collected, followed up,
 16 followed up, met in person, on the phone, by email,
 17 so I frankly don't know exactly other than
 18 changing the regulations or changing the
 19 definition, what different we could --

20 JUDGE KARLIN: Well, if your training and your
 21 guidance documents were wrong, then obviously this
 22 would create an under reporting of your documentary
 23 material.

24 MR. FITZPATRICK: If that were correct

Deleted: and

Deleted: and

Deleted: I

Deleted: are

Deleted: claiming

1 and in that regard, if the Board chooses to
2 scrutinize the definitions given by the parties to the
troops in the field, I
3 suggest that the definition of documentary material 2 given
4 by DOE needs to be scrutinized because otherwise I suppose
5 that would likely be in these monthly updates from now on--
6 JUDGE KARLIN: You haven't filed a motion to strike. File a
motion to strike if

7 you think that's a basis for it.

Deleted: ere i

8 JUDGE MOORE: Thank you, Mr. Fitzpatrick.

9 Rebuttal, Mr. Shebelskie?

10 MR. SHEBELSKIE: Yes, sir, just a few
11 points.

12 JUDGE ROSENTHAL: I've got a question at the
13 outset and it's in the context of your 323B
14 certification. And that is, with respect to all of
15 these matters that Judge Karlin has raised with Mr.

16 Fitzpatrick about the inadequacy or possible inadequacy of
the

Deleted: y

17 instructions given by Nevada to its individuals
18 that are working on this project, was this
19 something that you specifically raised during the
20 conference or -- I think that Mr. Fitzpatrick's
21 answer to that question was no, though I'm not
22 certain about that. I'm asking you whether this is

23 something that was addressed in your conference

24 with Nevada?

1 MR. SHEBELSKIE: We did not to my
2 recollection, review examples from those call memos -- what
we
3 discussed over the course of the two hours was that
4 we did not see supporting and non-supporting
5 information that in the volume that would be appropriate
6 and necessary to support the 2000 contentionss.
7 Likewise, we did not see -- in essence we
8 saw no e-mail which could be the case given the
9 discussions back and forth that the call memos posit on
draft
10 contentions and the response from Nevada was
11 because they have, no positions finalized, therefore,
12 they had no supporting information and non
13 supporting information.
14 We then went on further and discussed
15 that even if you don't have a final contention,
16 you still have created documents in the course of
17 doing the work that your experts had been doing,
18 both reviewing our work product and doing their
19 independent work product. Those documents under
20 the definition of documents in the regulations, I
21 remember discussing this specifically -- that a
22 document is defined as any electronic file and that
23 they would have created electronic files therefore

Deleted: ,

Deleted: about the

Deleted: d

Deleted: want to

Deleted: the

Deleted: s

Deleted: . And

24 documents with information in them. They could

1 take the form of emails, they could take the form
 2 of excel spread sheets, et cetera, et cetera. So
 3 they had to produce this. And with respect to
 4 graphic-oriented --

Deleted: ve not

Deleted: d

Deleted: at

Deleted: s

5 JUDGE MOORE: Wait, wait. Don't they have to be
 6 documentary material DM1, DM2, DM3? All right.

Deleted: --

7 MR. SHEBELSKIE: Oh yes, yes. But they were saying we,

Deleted: If you

8 don't have any positions and we said in order to
 9 identify your 2000 contentions, draft contentions, you
 10 would have had discussions. What shall we say, what are
 11 the grounds? Was supports them?

Deleted: at least

12 JUDGE ROSENTHAL: Again, what you're
 13 building is I think you built in your brief is a
 14 circumstantial case. What I'm getting at is
 15 whether or not you raised with them, the issue as
 16 to whether the instructions that they were giving
 17 to their employees, to the people working on this
 18 project were inadequate? In other words, whether
 19 you were raising in effect a legal issue

MR SHEBELSKIE: Well, we --

JUDGE KARLIN: -- as opposed

20 to simply saying, gee, we think that in the
 21 totality of circumstances, there should have been
 22 more documents of a particular character than in
 23 fact you were placed on the LSN.

24 MR. SHEBELSKIE: We said we didn't know

1 whether it was their experts who had not submitted
 2 documents, properly narrowed the standard or whether
 3 the experts had submitted a vast volume of documents and
 4 it was certifying official stamp --

Deleted: probably a

Deleted: f

Deleted: ,

JUDGE KARLIN: I understand that.

Formatted: Indent: First line: 0.5"

MR SHEBELSKIE: -- who had done the

5 filtering. So we could not say we don't know where
 6 the breakdown occurred but we said at some point,
 7 you applied in the process, with these memos, with
 8 what you followed, you adopted a very narrow standard.

9 JUDGE ROSENTHAL: What I'm trying to get
 10 at is whether you raised during that conference, an
 11 issue as to the legal sufficiency of that call
 12 memo? And I take it the answer to that is, no.

13 MR. SHEBELSKIE: I think not in the terms
 14 you're positing, Judge. So that -- I think that is an
 answer to your question.

Deleted: I

15 But what we discussed continuing, for example.
 16 Judge Moore, you asked about the graphic
 17 oriented material. We discussed that specifically
 18 and I already mentioned but we went on because in
 19 our brief, we had cited and saw on the LSN, those
 20 various progress reports from those two outfits,
 21 the two geoscience firms and that their progress reports
 22 stopped in April of 2005. And we said, it looked like their

Deleted: y

Deleted: s

work

23 continued.

24 Did they continue to do work and create 

Deleted: for

1 documentary material? The electronic files that would have
 2 information. We discussed that and Nevada's ,
 3 response was they did continue their work. We told
 4 them to stop generating those monthly progress
 5 reports, but they did their work. And we came back
 6 and said, well, whatever analysis they are doing,
 7 work product they are doing, continues up to 2006
 8 or 7, that creates documentary material that need
 9 to be made available.

Deleted: the bottom

Deleted: giv

10 JUDGE MOORE: What classification of
 11 documentary material?

12 MR. SHEBELSKIE: It can be either

13 Category I or Category II and it can, even be Category III.

Deleted: or

Deleted: i

If

14 you do a -- submit a gas sample or rock sample, do a
spectrograph or create a

15 electronic file that is a report from that. So it
 16 could be all three. Their point was they didn't
 17 have to produce any materials related to that
 18 ongoing work because they had no final positions.
 19 They had no final report and they had

Deleted: been giv

Deleted: ,

20 just taken a pass on whether or not the emails and ,
 21 other electronic files created including graphic

22 oriented material could qualify under any of the three

documentary

23 material classes.

24 That is how the discussion went back and

1 forth and actually embraces these issues that we had been
2 discussing here

Deleted: conditions

3 because again, we can't say Dr. -- these two geoscience
4 firms, Morganstein and I think it's Smith have
5 created X number of additional documents they have
6 not been made available to us.

7 What we know for a fact, what Nevada has not denied in this
8 particular instance is that those experts' work have
9 continued, is not a matter of speculation and they
10 have simply not produced any documents from them
11 after 2005.

12 JUDGE MOORE: There is something else at
13 issue here. You have in your motion given some
14 examples of how you did a search on the LSN; is
15 that correct?

16 MR. SHEBELSKIE: Correct.

17 JUDGE MOORE: Now, the way the LSN works
18 as I understand it, is it is only as good as the
19 search query. If your search query was not perfect
20 or faulty, then, you would get less than
21 anticipated results. So, how --

22 MR. SHEBELSKIE: As a general
23 hypothetical, yes.

Deleted: .

24 JUDGE MOORE: On the basis of what you
25 have given us, you are asking me to credit the

1 expertise of your search query and discount or
 2 discredit the responses to that. Nevada has said
 3 they reviewed all this, they put it into their
 4 screening process and they don't have the
 5 documentary material to produce. The only way that
 6 I can see from what you presented is and maybe you
 7 did, when you got something that said there were
 8 3,000 hits, did you go through all 3,000 documents
 9 to see what those 3,000 were?

10 MR. SHEBELSKIE: We did. We searched by
 11 author name and we reviewed every single hit that
 12 came up.

13 JUDGE MOORE: Did you bring up 3,000
 14 documents and look at the documents?

15 MR. SHEBELSKIE: Well, no author resulted
 16 in 3000 hits but what we did, Your Honor in
 17 response to their brief where they said, oh, your
 18 searches were wrong. First of all, they only give
 19 one example, don't they? They say for Dr. Barkatt, it's 37
instead of 34 --

20 JUDGE MOORE: You only gave 3 examples of
 21 documents and all three of those were in there.

22 MR. SHEBELSKIE: Yes.
 23 -- but in terms of the search results, the representation
of the number

Deleted: re

Deleted: as

Deleted: It resulted in 300
hits -

Deleted: t

Deleted: turned out

24 of documents identified by author. What we did and we

Deleted: presented

Deleted: was

1 attached this as our supplemental Exhibit CC we went in and
2 downloaded Nevada's entire collection and sorted by date,
3 you know, we told you -- showed you earlier at the
beginning of the

Deleted: his

Deleted: and

4 argument from exhibits, the research we had done
5 that, excluded all of the documents that predated
6 their retention of the law firm. Because they said they
7 hired their experts later.

Deleted: and

Deleted: con

Deleted: T

Deleted: ose

8 So we got all the September 10th, 2001
9 and later documents. We removed the documents that

10 Nevada has attributed as authorship as DOE, DOE
11 contractors, NRC, that were transcripts of
12 proceedings and that were by other federal agencies and you
end up -- and we

Deleted: d

Deleted: and

Deleted: by

13 sorted them by author here. And you get 700
14 documents total and you can look by author name and
15 it confirms what we did in general terms here.

Deleted: there were

16 There is no dispute. Nevada has not
17 disputed the material point made by our
18 representation here on that score.

19 A couple of other miscellaneous points,
20 Your Honor. First, Mr. Loux is not some casual

21 Nevada employee. He is the long-standing, something like I
think two

Deleted: a

22 decades at least, head of the Nevada agency for

23 Nuclear Projects, the Nevada agency with obviously the
responsibility for dealing

24 with Yucca Mountain and he is also, Nevada's

1 certifying official.

2 JUDGE MOORE: All well and good. I'm

3 curious, why don't you have any declarations by

Deleted: you

4 those with knowledge of the facts that could so

5 swear to in support of your motion to the very

6 argument that you just made, that Mr. Loux is--

7 whoever Mr. Loux is and that you have knowledge of

8 the fact that he has written X number of documents

9 and that -- but you have not done any of that.

10 What is the response to Mr. Fitzpatrick's argument

11 that all I have is lawyer's argument. I don't have

12 any facts.

13 MR. SHEBELSKIE: No. You have facts with -- in terms --

there

Deleted: that

14 is, now in the record, two transcriptions of

Deleted: are

15 testimony from Mr. Loux, an affidavit that he gave

16 on a federal lawsuit and his testimony before the

17 Nevada Commission last month, identifies who he is

18 and what his position is. In that testimony from

19 last month he testifies, about the work that

Deleted: d

20 Nevada's experts have been doing, the preparation

21 of contentions. We provided the sworn testimony of

22 Mr. Fitzpatrick's partner, Mr. Egan where he

23 describes the work --

Deleted: L

24 JUDGE MOORE: But look at 35 of those 37

1 contentions that are in here as exhibits. Now, we
 2 are playing fast and loose with the word
 3 "contention," aren't we?

MR SHEBELSKIE: Well, I don't know what the topics are --

JUDGE MOORE: There you have it. You don't know.

4 MR. SHEBELSKIE: Well, of course I don't know.

Deleted: o

5 But just like Nevada didn't know what DOE's

6 production and standards were and what was going on at DOE
 internally, the point

7 is all we can say is look at the objective evidence

8 available to us that is on the face of LSN, juxtaposed

9 against the sworn testimony of both the Nevada

10 official and the Nevada counsel has provided about

11 the work they are doing and there is a gross

12 mismatch.

13 Now, there is no rejoinder by Nevada that

14 somehow, they all have on the LSN, a lot more work

15 product, by all these documents and that our

Deleted: brought about

16 chart was inaccurate. What they simply say is

17 well, we have not finalized our contentions and we

18 need to do more. It gets back to that point which is

Deleted: and

19 inadequate.

20 JUDGE MOORE: Didn't they put in some

21 illustrative exhibits in their oral argument

22 exhibit --

23 MR. SHEBELSKIE: They put in 2 or 3

24 examples. We never -- We didn't contend in our brief that
they

1 had no graphic-oriented material. We did say ~~-- we didn't~~
 2 ~~say none. We said -- we~~ did point out with respect to the
 two geoscience

3 firms that we knew there was several years' worth
 4 of work that was absent.

5 ~~None of their illustrative examples by~~
 6 the way ~~are~~ graphic-oriented material from those ~~two~~
 7 organizations from the post 2005 time period, they
 8 were completely silent about that. The point we
 9 made more broadly though about graphic-oriented

10 material is that even if you don't have ~~the~~ finalized
 11 version of your contentions with all the bells and
 12 whistles that would satisfy 2.309 for example, you

13 still have generated ~~information,~~ ~~you have~~ documents with
 14 information in them including graphic-oriented
 15 material that you have to consider for production

16 now as class I documentary material and ~~even~~ class II
 17 and potentially, Class III.

18 So it is not your final contentions ~~s~~ but ~~it's~~
 19 supported by all this material. ~~With respect to -- and --~~

20 And in that respect, Judge Karlin went ~~on,~~
 21 at great detail about those examples, guidance
 22 examples but I do want you to go back and
 23 deliberate, also look at Example C from that and
 24 I'll just read it here. The example reads as

Deleted: --

Deleted: Many

Deleted: we

Deleted: a

Deleted: the

Deleted: i

Deleted: in

1 follows, "Gene Smith's preliminary draft Volcanism
2 Report was circulated and there were numerous
3 emails sent back and forth among Nevada experts
4 chatting about Dr. Smith's preliminary draft
5 contention."

Deleted: Ju

6 And as Judge Karlin already would have
7 noted that they have categorically said that none
8 of those emails are going to have anything non
9 supportive, and therefore, not documentary material

Deleted: ed

10 DM2 but they even go on to say those things are
11 not going to be DM2 because although the emails are
12 final, they are not going to be -- emails

Deleted: es

13 themselves are not going to be cited. This goes
14 to our point here. The emails have information in them --

Deleted: silent

15 JUDGE MOORE: Mr. Fitzpatrick is about to
16 object that this isn't rebuttal, is that correct?

17 MR. FITZPATRICK: Exactly. It is just
18 another example of something that was not
19 discussed in rebuttal.

20 MR. SHEBELSKIE And then, with respect to
21 Mr. Frishman, I would note however that at Exhibit G of the
guidance memo -- the

Deleted: e

22 hypothetical given or the example given there is that Bob

Deleted: ,

Loux

23 asked Steve Frishman to comment on Mike Thorne's

1 that's a pretty good insight that Mr.
2 Frishman is not just some casual bystander in the
3 process here. And finally with respect to the
4 presence or not of emails by me in the LSN, I just want to
5 comment on something on that briefly.

6 JUDGE MOORE: I'm struck by what you are
7 presenting today by what -- in contrast to what you said in
8 2004 in your response to your motion to strike. And
9 what has made your response in 2004 invalid? Now,
10 I will quote it to you and I will also point out to
11 you that you in your argument are raising the
12 legislative history in the context that we don't
13 have jurisdiction to impose the remedy that Nevada
14 was seeking. And we found that we did have
15 jurisdiction.

16 But you said and I quote: And this is
17 from page 2 of your Answer back in 2004, "Disputes
18 about document production are routine in any
19 litigation. In this proceeding, such disputes are
20 especially likely in the pre-license application
21 phase before the license application has been
22 completed, before intervention petitions have
23 been filed, or contentions formulated and ruled on
24 and thus before the ultimate scope of the documents

Deleted: T

Deleted: i

Deleted: of

1 are legitimately needed by participants has been
2 established.

Deleted: ve

3 Under these circumstances, no rote, or
4 formalistic process can identify documents as
5 documentary materials, especially documents that
6 might contain non-supporting information in the
7 absence of concrete contentions and judgment calls
8 have to be made. In any multi year production
9 effort involving millions of documents, thousands
10 of purchases and complicated information systems, you
11 will also have human mistakes and system failures. Nor will
12 those situations be limited to DOE's production."

Deleted: ad

13 I'm misstating because we were using DEN at
14 that point for DOE.

Deleted: All right. M

15 "No participant's production will obtain
16 the unreachable goal of perfection and no
17 participant's judgment call will be free from good
18 faith disagreements. Such disputes, however do not
19 make a participant certification unlawful or
20 invalid, nor do they provide any basis to strike
21 DOE's certification or delay the other participants'
production

22 of documentary material."

23 In 2004, and I think we had a markedly,
24 different situation than we are faced with now but

1 aren't those words ringing true? They do to me and
 2 I see that you are taking a completely opposite
 3 position today than in defense of your activities
 4 in 2004.

Deleted: the

5 MR. SHEBELSKIE: Your Honor, I suppose I
 6 could say well, what is different is y'all ruled
 7 against us pretty decisively on everything.

Deleted: the law

JUDGE MOORE: I know the rulings -- consistency --

MR SHEBELSKIE: But,

Formatted: Indent: First line: 0.5"

8 Your Honor, as we said in the beginning of our
 9 brief, we are not trying to keep Nevada out of the
 10 proceeding for all time.

Deleted: view

11 And we are not quibbling here about a few
 12 documents here and there. You know, Nevada had made

Deleted: ver

Deleted: materials. They

Deleted: ve

available a

13 hundred thousand emails and we went through and we could
find, oh, someone responded to

14 that email and you didn't produce it. That is a
 15 judgment call and that's the situation that relates
 16 to it.

17 This is not a judgment call where some
 18 people have made a few errors on what is
 19 supporting or non-supporting. What we see here is
 20 a broad based programmatic or categorical exclusion
 21 as to what based on a false premise, that they

Deleted: er

Deleted: report

Deleted: 's

Deleted: s

22 cannot identify Category I information now and therefore,
23 not Category information II either. It is a,
24 misapplication of the standard that resulted not in just a
bad -- or an

Deleted: at

Deleted: A

Deleted: missed

1 inadvertent or mistakes here on the margins, but a
2 fundamental failure to produce the documents that
3 we are entitled to, and Nevada should be producing.

4 Finally, let me if there were no other
5 questions, I did want to comment -- respond to
6 Mr. Fitzpatrick's comments that there are a few
7 emails either authored or sent to me. The answer to that is

Deleted: w

my

8 involvement from day one as counsel for DOE has
9 involved responsibility for document production on
10 the LSN compliance activities, not substantive technical

work

11 product. I'm not a substantive technical expert.

12 You search, our, LSN collection, however, for the other

Deleted: e

Deleted:

13 attorney's name, both the Department of Energy and
14 at Hunton & Williams. And you are going to see I

15 know several tens of thousands of documents of the
16 DOE counsel, hundreds of thousands of documents

17 where they are on the documents as, authors and

Deleted: of

18 recipients cause they're kept apprised.

19 Contrast that in my closing remarks, the

20 Nevada's production where there is basically no

21 emails from all these technical experts

22 corresponding and copying Nevada's counsel.

23 Have they been doing all this work,

24 developing all this technical work product,

1 developing these positions and contentions without
2 keeping the lawyers in the loop? I don't think
3 that's the case.

4 Thank you, Your Honor.

5 JUDGE MOORE: The Board will take the
6 matter under advisement and I would just
7 editorialize by saying that you have not made our
8 job easy. We stand adjourned.

9 (Whereupon, the foregoing
10 matter was concluded at 1:00
11 p.m.)

12 E-N-D P-R-O-C-E-E-D-I-N-G-S

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

Deleted: i11

1 "This is to certify that the attached proceedings
2 before the United States Nuclear Regulatory
3 Commission in the matter of:
4 Oral Argument for PAPO proceeding
5 PAPO-00
6 Rockville, MD

7
8 were held as herein appears, and that this is
9 the original transcript thereof for the file of
10 the United States Nuclear Regulatory
11 Commission taken and, transcribed by me
12 or under the direction of the court reporting
13 company, and that the transcript is a true
14 and accurate record of the foregoing
15 proceedings.

16
17 /S/
18 (Lorraine Carter)
19 Official Reporter
20 Caption Reporters Inc.22